
AGENDA 

KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION 

10:00 a.m., Friday, June 12, 2020 

 

TELECONFERENCE 

PHONE NUMBER: 1-888-321-5815 

CONFERENCE ID: 1758109 

 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

C. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. Minutes of March 13, 2020 

D. CONSENT AGENDA 

Items listed on the consent agenda are routine in nature. If requested by a commissioner, 

an item may be removed from the Consent Agenda and placed under Commission Items 

for further discussion and consideration. 

 

1. Approvals and revocations for certain lottery facility games and related components  

a. GLI Approval Letters April, May, and June 2020 

b. GLI Revocation Letters April, May, and June 2020 

c. BMM Approval Letters April, May, and June 2020  

2. Internal Control amendment approvals 

a. Boot Hill Casino internal control amendment approvals  

b. Kansas Star Casino internal control amendment approvals 

c. Hollywood Casino internal control amendment approvals 

d. Kansas Crossing Casino internal control amendment approvals  

 3. Disciplinary Review Board Waivers 

 a. Amanda Young-Ayesh, KRGC Case No. 2020-2002 

E. Lottery Gaming Facility Reports/Items 

1. Boot Hill Casino and Resort 

a. May Monthly Report 



b. March Monthly Revenue Report 

c. April Monthly Revenue Report 

d. May Monthly Revenue Report 

2. Kansas Star Casino  

a. May Monthly Report 

b. March Monthly Revenue Report 

c. April Monthly Revenue Report 

d. May Monthly Revenue Report 

3. Hollywood Casino at Kansas Speedway 

a. May Monthly Report 

b. March Monthly Revenue Report 

c. April Monthly Revenue Report 

d. May Monthly Revenue Report 

4. Kansas Crossing Casino  

a. May Monthly Report 

b. March Monthly Revenue Report 

c. April Monthly Revenue Report 

d. May Monthly Revenue Report 

F. COMMISSION ITEMS – OLD BUSINESS 

NONE 

G. COMMISSION ITEMS – NEW BUSINESS 

  NONE 

H. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

I. STAFF REPORTS 



1. Sarah Lynch-Chaput, Paralegal  

a. Voluntary Exclusion Program Report  

2. Don Brownlee, Executive Director  

J. DISCIPLINARY REVIEW PROCESS 

1.  Michelle Stamport, KRGC Case No. 2020-2001 

K. EXECUTIVE SESSIONS 

The Commission conducts executive sessions in accordance with the Kansas Open 

Meetings Act and all discussions are limited to the specified purposes listed in K.S.A. 75-

4319. The Commission utilizes executive sessions to consult with the Commission’s 

attorney on confidential legal matters, to discuss confidential personnel matters, to 

protect the confidentiality of necessarily closed information including licensee 

background reports, and to protect the integrity of gaming information and the 

confidentiality of lottery gaming facility manager finances. Note: Due to logistical issues 

with convening a closed executive session mid-meeting and reconvening the meeting to 

take agency action, the closed executive session will take place immediately prior to the 

meeting. This procedure will be in place for commission meetings held during the 

COVID-19 closures and will be discontinued once the commission resumes in-person 

meetings. The following items will be discussed: 
 

1. Attorney/Client Privilege  

 

2. Background Reports  

 

L. OTHER BUSINESS/FURTHER COMMISSION ACTION 

1. Consideration of proposed gaming licenses and renewals  

 

M. ADJOURNMENT 



 

KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION 

 

MINUTES – MARCH 13, 2020 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER 

(A.) 

 Chairman Brandon Jones called the March 13, 2020 meeting to order 

at 10:00 a.m. The meeting was held in the East Tower Conference 

Room of the Eisenhower State Office Building, 700 SW Harrison, in 

Topeka, KS. Commissioners David Moses, Kelly Kultala, Larry 

Turnquist, and Dave Myres were also present. Others present included 

Executive Director Don Brownlee, General Counsel Judith Taylor, 

Director of Administration, Audit, and Finance Brandi White, Director 

of Electronic Security and I.T. Dennis Bachman, Director of 

Electronic Gaming Roger Bailey, Director of Security Joe Herridge, 

Enforcement Attorney Michelle Neis sitting in for Recording 

Secretary Sarah Lynch-Chaput, and other staff. 

   

MOTION, APPROVE 

AGENDA 

(B.) 

 Commissioner Turnquist (Myres) moved to approve the agenda.  

Motion carried unanimously. 

   

MOTION, APPROVE  

FEBRUARY 14, 2020 

MEETING MINUTES 

(C.1.) 

 Commissioner Myres (Turnquist) moved to approve the minutes of the 

February 14, 2020 meeting. Motion carried unanimously.   

   

MOTION, APPROVE 

CONSENT AGENDA  

(D.) 

 Commissioner Turnquist (Myres) moved to approve the consent 

agenda. Motion carried unanimously. 

   

LOTTERY GAMING 

FACILITY 

REPORTS/ITEMS; BOOT 

HILL CASINO & RESORT 

(E.1.a.) 

 Diane Giardine, General Manager, reported: 

 February 2020 revenue numbers compared to February 2019: 

o Total gaming revenue increased 6.52% 

o Total slot revenue increased 5.84% 

o Table games revenue increased 11.85% 

 Upcoming Promotions: 

o Earn & Eat Mondays 

o Weekly Food and Beverage Specials 

o Comp Point Multiplier Thursdays 

o Free and Earn and Win Gift Promotions 

o Big Draw 

o St. Patrick’s Day Specials 

o $5 Blackjack 



 

o 10X Odds on Craps 

 Upcoming Events: 

o Harlem Globetrotters, March 10 

o Fairytales on Ice, March 27 

o Jeff Dunham, April 3 

o Bridal & Women’s Day Out Expo, April 19 

o Everclear with Fastball, April 25 

o Lee Brice, May 9 

 At the request of the Commissioners, Ms. Giardine described 

what measures Boot Hill Casino is taking to prepare for and 

react to the covid-19 coronavirus. 

   

LOTTERY GAMING 

FACILITY 

REPORTS/ITEMS; KANSAS 

STAR 

(E.2.a.) 

 Jeff Babinski, Vice President and General Manager, reported: 

 February 2020 revenue numbers compared to February 2019: 

o Admissions up 5.62% 

o Total gross gaming revenue up 9.95% 

o Slot coin-in up 7.36% 

o Slot hold up 0.24 

o Table games drop up 6.78% 

o Table games hold up 0.17 points 

o Poker room revenue down 2.69% 

 Past Events and Promotions: 

o Wichita Flea Market, February 15th and 16th  

o Prom of the Ages, February 22nd 

o USA Wrestling District II, March 6th and 7th 

 Upcoming Events and Promotions: 

o Clint Black, March 13th 

o Wichita Flea Market, March 21st and 22nd 

o Rock of the 70s featuring Foghat, April 11th 

o Wichita Flea Market, April 18th and 19th 

o Marauders Car Show, April 25th 

 At the request of the Commissioners, Mr. Babinski described 

what measures Kansas Star Casino is taking to prepare for and 

react to the covid-19 coronavirus. 

   

LOTTERY GAMING 

FACILITY 

REPORTS/ITEMS; 

HOLLYWOOD CASINO AT 

KANSAS SPEEDWAY 

(E.3.a.) 

 Rick Skinner, Vice President and General Manager, reported:  

 February 2020 revenue numbers compared to February 2019: 

o Admissions up 21.6% 

o Total gaming revenue was $13.9 million, an increase of 

16.5% 



 

o Slot revenue was $12.4 million, an increase of 18.9% 

o Table games revenue was $1.5 million, a decrease of 

0.3% 

 Past Events and Promotions: 

o Winners Giveaway, February 15th  

o VIP High Limit Pull Party, February 18th  

o Mardi Gras Bash for Cash, February 22nd 

o Blizzards of Cash, February 25th  

o mychoice Millionaire Slot Tournament, February 28th 

 Upcoming Events and Promotions: 

o  $20,000 Money Madness Table Games Promotion, 

March 1st – March 27th  

o $200,000 Sporting KC Kick Picks, now – October 

o Hollywood Hi-Lo, March 13th and 20th 

o $250,000 Risky Bonus, March 27th  

o $35,000 Winners Giveaway, March 28th  

o Kansas Lottery Scratch Ticket Giveaway, April 3rd 

 At the request of the Commissioners, Mr. Skinner described 

what measures Hollywood Casino is taking to prepare for and 

react to the covid-19 coronavirus. 

   

LOTTERY GAMING 

FACILITY 

REPORTS/ITEMS; KANSAS 

CROSSING CASINO 

(E.4.a.)  

 Jeff McCain, General Manager, reported: 

 February 2020 revenue numbers compared to February 2019: 

o Admissions increased 7.9% 

o Net slot revenue increased 11.7% 

o Table games revenue decreased 18.4% 

o Net gaming revenue increased 9.2% 

 Past Events and Promotions:  

o Bulova Watch giveaway, February 1st  

o Sherpa throws giveaway, February 8th  

o Make it a Double Slot Tournament, February 15th  

o Nested mixing bowl set giveaway, February 22nd 

o Leap into a Heap of Cash $50,000 Giveaway, February 

29th  

o Live matinee of Tribute to the Stars, every Wednesday 

o Heartbreak Smash and Grab (top prize $2,500), every 

Friday 

o Clash of the Champions 1, February 22nd 

o Colt Ford, February 28th 

o Hairball, February 29th 



 

 Upcoming Events and Promotions: 

o Lucky Leprechaun Slot Tournaments, every Tuesday 

o Outdoor lighting set giveaway, March 7th 

o Table games Hot Seats and Bracket Buster Slot 

Tournament, March 7th, 14th, 21st, 28th  

o KCC Logo Pullover, March 14th  

o VIP Free Slot Pull, March 20th  

o $5 Brew’Tus Ales and Pizza in 2 Brothers Restaurant, 

March 21st  

o Topaz and Gold members brunch, March 22nd  

o Outdoor sleeping set giveaway, March 27th 

o Luggage giveaway, March 29th   

o Little Texas, March 7th  

o LOL Comedy Club, Thursdays 

 At the request of the Commissioners, Mr. McCain described 

what measures Kansas Crossing Casino is taking to prepare for 

and react to the covid-19 coronavirus. 

   

COMMISSION ITEMS – 

OLD BUSINESS  

(F.) 

 There were no old business items. 

   

COMMISSION ITEMS – 

NEW BUSINESS  

(G.) 

 There were no new business items.   

   

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

(H.) 

 There were no public comments.   

 
 

 

STAFF REPORTS 

(I.1.a. and I.2) 

 

 Michelle Neis, Enforcement Attorney, reported on the Voluntary 

Exclusion Program statistics for the month of February 2020. 

 

Executive Director Brownlee reported:   

 K.A.R. 112-105-1 amendment that the Commission approved 

on February 14, 2020 has been published in the state register 

and will become effective on March 20, 2020. 

 Three of four casinos have an agreement with the Department 

of Administration to implement the Kansas Debt Set Off 

program. Hollywood Casino is now in negotiations to reach a 

similar agreement with Department of Administration. 

 Senate passed Senate Bill 283 (23 – 15) and sent it over to the 

House Federal and State Affairs Committee. 



 

 Outlined the major provisions of SB 283. 

 Outlined the major provisions of HB 2671. 

 Informational hearing will be held the week after this meeting 

regarding the Sedgwick County revote allowing electronic 

gaming machines to be operated at the racetrack. 

 The April 17, 2020 commission meeting will take place in 

Topeka at 10:00 a.m.    

   

MOTION, EXECUTIVE 

SESSION; ATTORNEY-

CLIENT PRIVILEGE AND 

BACKGROUND REPORTS 

(J.1, J.2) 

 Commissioner Myres (Turnquist) moved that the Commission go into 

executive session for the purpose of confidential attorney-client 

privileged communications and reviewing the list of confidential 

backgrounds for licensing. In addition to the commissioners, those 

included in the executive sessions were the executive director and 

general counsel for attorney-client privilege and the commissioners, 

executive director, general counsel, and director of security for 

reviewing the list of confidential backgrounds for licensing. The total 

time for the executive session was anticipated to be thirty minutes until 

12:00 p.m. No action is to be taken in executive session, and the 

subjects discussed are to be limited as previously described. A full 

record of this motion is to be maintained as part of the permanent 

record of the Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission. At the 

conclusion of the executive session, the meeting is to be continued in 

open session. The motion carried unanimously and the meeting was 

adjourned to executive session at 11:30 a.m. 

   

RECONVENE  The commission meeting returned to open session at 12:00 p.m. with 

all members present.  

   

MOTIONS ON LICENSE 

APPLICATIONS 

(K.) 

 Commissioner Turnquist (Myres) moved to conditionally approve 5 

license applications, deny the request for reconsideration from 1 

license applicant, and approve the remaining 148 license applications 

from the March 13, 2020 list of background reports referred to the 

commission for action. Motion carried unanimously.   
   

OTHER BUSINESS  

(K.) 

 No other business. 

   

ADJOURN 

(L.) 

 The next meeting of the commission is on April 17, 2020 at 10:00 a.m. 

in Topeka, KS. Commissioner Myres (Turnquist) moved to adjourn 

the meeting. Motion carried unanimously. The meeting was adjourned 

at 12:05 p.m.  



 

   

SUBMITTED BY:   

 

 

 

  

____________________   

Larry Turnquist 

Secretary  

  

   

APPROVED BY:   

 

 

 

  

____________________   

Brandon Jones   

Chairman   

   

   

   

   

   

   
 



June 12, 2020 Recommended for Approval GLI Test Labs

Manufacturer File Number Game Name

ADVANCED CASINO SYST SY-389-ADC-19-01 Penn FixPack 7 applied to 11.5.1.2

AINSWORTH GAMING TEC MO-22-AWG-20-05 Mega Choice Superstar

AINSWORTH GAMING TEC MO-22-AWG-20-08 JCM UBA-10 US BILL VALIDATOR FIRMWARE

AINSWORTH GAMING TEC MO-22-AWG-20-10 Cai Fu Journey

AINSWORTH GAMING TEC MO-22-AWG-20-11 Cai Fu Journey

AINSWORTH GAMING TEC MO-22-AWG-20-18 Path to Wealth

AINSWORTH GAMING TEC MO-22-AWG-20-19 Vault of Riches

AINSWORTH GAMING TEC MO-73-AWG-19-101 Captain's Quest

AINSWORTH GAMING TEC MO-73-AWG-19-99 Captain's Quest

Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. MO-73-ARI-20-05 N/A

Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. MO-73-ARI-20-06 N/A

Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. MO-73-ARI-20-07 N/A

Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. MO-73-ARI-20-08 N/A

Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. MO-73-ARI-20-10 Buffalo Gold Revolution

Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. MO-73-ARI-20-11 Billions Progressive Schedules

Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. SY-08-ARI-20-01 N/A

Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. SY-73-ARI-17-15 N/A

Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. SY-73-ARI-20-02 N/A

Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. SY-73-ARI-20-03 N/A

Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. SY-73-ARI-20-04 N/A

Aristocrat Technologies, Inc.   * SY-73-ARI-20-05   * Oasis Loyalty System   *

Aruze Gaming America MO-508-ARZ-20-03 Wheel of Prosperity Tiger

Aruze Gaming America MO-508-ARZ-20-04 Wheels Go Round Bull

Bally West LO-00-SHU-18-02 FACE UP PAI GOW POKER PROGRESSIVE

BOYD GAMING CORPORATION SY-38-BGC-20-01 N/A

BOYD GAMING CORPORATION   ** SY-07-BGC-19-02   ** OFFER MANAGER UTILITY   **

Everi Games, Inc. MO-22-MMG-20-03 JCM UBA-10/11-SS Firmware

Everi Games, Inc. MO-22-MMG-20-04 MEI SCN66 Firmware

Everi Games, Inc. MO-294-MMG-20-10 MF_PowerShotFreedom

Everi Games, Inc. MO-294-MMG-20-11 MF_PowerShotProsperity

Everi Payments, Inc. MO-22-GAC-13-01 NANOPTIX PAYCHECK PRINTER FIRMWARE

Everi Payments, Inc. MO-22-GAC-13-02 FUTURELOGIC GEN2 UNIVERSAL PRINTER FIRMWARE

Everi Payments, Inc. SY-166-GAC-13-06 N/A

Everi Payments, Inc. SY-73-GAC-15-01 N/A

Everi Payments, Inc. SY-73-GAC-15-02 N/A

Everi Payments, Inc. SY-73-GAC-16-01 N/A

Everi Payments, Inc. SY-73-GAC-16-08 N/A

IGT MO-129-IGT-20-01 CLEO TOURNAMENT SIGN CONTROLLER

IGT MO-22-IGT-19-178 UC SERIES 3 FRAMEWORK

IGT MO-22-IGT-19-195 Jeopardy!

IGT MO-22-IGT-20-13 FW,BV,MEI SCN66,NETPLEX,USD

IGT MO-22-IGT-20-14 Mystery of the Congo

IGT MO-22-IGT-20-15 UC SERIES 3 SERVER

IGT MO-22-IGT-20-21 DRAGON OF FORTUNE SIGN CONTROLLER SINGLE SCREEN

IGT MO-22-IGT-20-22 FW,BV,MEI SCN66,SPC,USD

IGT MO-22-IGT-20-40 Jungle Tower

IGT MO-22-IGT-20-45 Cats

IGT MO-22-IGT-20-51 IPC GUI FOR USE WITH CPF0015I 3% ALERT

IGT MO-22-IGT-20-53 Double Big Wheel Poker

IGT MO-22-IGT-20-54 Cleopatra Tournament

IGT MO-22-IGT-20-55 Super Times Pay Keno Combo Pack

IGT MO-22-IGT-20-57 MegaTower $25000 Pyramid

IGT MO-22-IGT-20-72 I Heart Jackpots Double Shot

IGT MO-22-IGT-20-76 FORTUNE COIN BOOST PEAKSLANT49 LED SIGN CONTROLLER

IGT MO-286-IGT-20-02 Gold and Dragon II

IGT MO-508-IGT-20-01 IncrediBell Tournament

IGT MO-50-IGT-20-01 Wheel of Fortune MegaTower Pink Diamond

IGT MO-66-IGT-20-02 Wheel of Fortune Double 4x Pay Gold Spin Deluxe

IGT MO-73-IGT-17-83 WHEEL SHOT ELECTRIC UNICORN

INCREDIBLE TECHNOLOG MO-22-INT-20-06 Prize Rize Scrolls of the Nile

1



June 12, 2020 Recommended for Approval GLI Test Labs

INCREDIBLE TECHNOLOG MO-22-INT-20-08 Wheel Force Bright 7s

INCREDIBLE TECHNOLOG MO-22-INT-20-11 Crazy Money II

INCREDIBLE TECHNOLOG MO-22-INT-20-15 Prize Pool Cactus Cash

INCREDIBLE TECHNOLOG MO-22-INT-20-16 Prize Pool Fierce Dragon

INCREDIBLE TECHNOLOG MO-497-INT-18-01 N/A

INCREDIBLE TECHNOLOG MO-497-INT-19-01 Epic Edge Firmware E001TTL2102

INCREDIBLE TECHNOLOG MO-73-INT-19-18 A CUT ABOVE BRILLIANT BLUE JACKPOTS

INCREDIBLE TECHNOLOG MO-73-INT-19-23 A Cut Above Ritzy Red Jackpots

INCREDIBLE TECHNOLOG MO-73-INT-20-01 Sky Pyramid Pretty Penny

KONAMI GAMING INC. MO-73-KON-17-101 Overflowing Stacks

KONAMI GAMING INC. MO-73-KON-19-09 Secret Power Symbols

KONAMI GAMING INC. MO-73-KON-19-102 Toadally Wild

KONAMI GAMING INC. MO-73-KON-19-38 Pride of Riches

KONAMI GAMING INC. MO-73-KON-20-07 Bill$ & Thrill$

KONAMI GAMING INC. MO-73-KON-20-13 Chili Chili Fire Boosted Wins & Wilds

KONAMI GAMING INC. MO-73-KON-20-14 Star Watch Fire

KONAMI GAMING INC. MO-73-KON-20-16 Star Watch Magma

KONAMI GAMING INC. MO-73-KON-20-18 KPS - Silent Hill Media Controller

KONAMI GAMING INC. MO-73-KON-20-32 JCM Bill Acceptor Firmware

KONAMI GAMING INC. MO-73-KON-20-42 KP3.5 Game Common

KONAMI GAMING INC. MO-73-KON-20-43 KP3.5 Windows OS

SDS SY-73-SDS-19-19 N/A

SG Gaming, Inc. f/k/a Bally Gaming, Inc. MO-209-BAL-20-11 Wizard of Oz Munchkinland

SG Gaming, Inc. f/k/a Bally Gaming, Inc. MO-73-BAL-19-107 Jinse Dao Tiger

SG Gaming, Inc. f/k/a Bally Gaming, Inc. MO-73-BAL-20-18 MEI Bill Validator Firmware

SG Gaming, Inc. f/k/a Bally Gaming, Inc. MO-73-BAL-20-19 JCM UBA Bill Validator Firmware

SG Gaming, Inc. f/k/a Bally Gaming, Inc. MO-73-BAL-20-20 Lock It Link - Lu Lu Tong

SG Gaming, Inc. f/k/a Bally Gaming, Inc. MO-73-BAL-20-21 Monopoly Hot Shot

SG Gaming, Inc. f/k/a Bally Gaming, Inc. MO-73-BAL-20-42 Jin Ji Bao Xi - Prancing Pigs

SG Gaming, Inc. f/k/a Bally Gaming, Inc. MO-73-BAL-20-50 Operating System 

SG Gaming, Inc. f/k/a Bally Gaming, Inc. MO-73-BAL-20-62 Million Degrees Deluxe

SG Gaming, Inc. f/k/a Bally Gaming, Inc. PA-73-BAL-20-01 N/A

WESTERN MONEY   (Everi Payments) MO-73-WEM-11-01 FUTURELOGIC

WESTERN MONEY   (Everi Payments) SY-08-WEM-11-01 N/A

WESTERN MONEY   (Everi Payments) SY-73-WEM-12-03 N/A

    *  Executive Approval on 04-22-2020

   **  Executive Approval on 05-04-2020

2



June 12, 2020 Recommended for Revocation GLI Test Labs

Manufacturer File Number Game Name

IGT MO-135-IGT-18-12 UC SERIES 3 FRAMEWORK

IGT MO-22-IGT-15-282 UC SERIES 3 FRAMEWORK

IGT MO-22-IGT-16-187 UC SERIES 3 FRAMEWORK

IGT MO-22-IGT-17-287 UC SERIES 3 FRAMEWORK

IGT MO-22-IGT-18-176 UC SERIES 3 FRAMEWORK

IGT MO-22-IGT-19-93 UC SERIES 3 FRAMEWORK

IGT MO-73-IGT-19-42 Mystery of the Congo

KONAMI GAMING INC MO-132-KON-19-06 Star Watch Magma

KONAMI GAMING INC MO-73-KON-18-143 Star Watch Magma

KONAMI GAMING INC MO-73-KON-18-144 Star Watch Fire

KONAMI GAMING INC MO-73-KON-19-64 Chili Chili Fire Boosted Wins & Wilds



June 12, 2020 Recommended for Approval BMM Test Labs

Manufacturer Report # Game Name

Aristocrat ATI10892KS Gold Stacks - Prosperity Cats

Aristocrat ATI13262KS Cash Fortune - Panda Cash

Aristocrat ATI13272KS Cash Fortune - Tiger Pays

Aristocrat ATI14001KS 5 Coin Fenzy Jackpots - Wukong Wealth



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 

Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 

700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@krgc.ks.gov 

Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 

Don Brownlee, Executive Director Laura Kelly, Governor 

 
 

 

Boot Hill Casino Internal Control Amendments 

 

June 12th, 2020 

 

Item #/ (Description) 

Regulation 

Waiver? Regulation/IC Reference 

Staff 

Recommendation 

BH559 – Keys No KAR 112-104-34 / IC 140.070.00 Approval 

BH560 – Craps No KAR 112-108-6 / IC 250.010.00 Approval 

BH563 – Points and Free Play 

Adjustments 
No IC 260.020.00 Approval 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 

Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 

700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@krgc.ks.gov 

Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 

Donald Brownlee, Executive Director Laura Kelly., Governor 

 
 

 
 

 

Kansas Star Casino Internal Control Amendments 

 

June 12, 2020 

 

 

Item #/ (Description) 

Regulation 

Waiver? Regulation/IC Reference 

Staff 

Recommendation 

KS297 – Non-Gaming Org Chart 

Changes 
No 

KAR 112-104-2 /  Non-Gaming §2 

F&B Org Chart & §2a F&B Job 

Descriptions 

Approve 

KS299 – Elimination of Director of 

Surveillance position, Surveillance 

Manager to Assume Director’s 

Duties 

No 

KAR 112-104-2(a)(5)(b)(1) and 

KAR 112-105-2 / Security Plan; 

Surveillance Plan; Surveillance 

Sections 1, 2, 3, & 7;  

Admin Section 2, 3, & 14 

Approve 

KS300 – Director of Table Games 

Title Change to Casino Manager 
No 

KAR 112-104-2 / §2 Admin Org 

Chart  

KAR 112-108-6(b) / Poker §1 2; 

Security §3 & Security Plan; Slots 

§11; Table Games §1, 2, 23, 40, & 

44; & Table Games Rules of Game 

§4 & 19 

Approve 

 



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 

Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 

700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@krgc.ks.gov 

Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 

Don Brownlee, Executive Director Laura Kelly, Governor 

 
 

 

 

 

Hollywood Casino Internal Control Amendments 

 

June 12, 2020 

 

 

Item #/ (Description) 
Regulation 

Waiver? 
Regulation/IC Reference 

Staff 

Recommendation 

HW158 – Food & Beverage 

Org. Chart and Job Descriptions  
No 

KAR 112-104-2 / Org Chart and Job 

Descriptions 
Approval 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 
 

 

 



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 

Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 

700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@krgc.ks.gov 

Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 

Donald Brownlee, Executive Director Laura Kelly., Governor 

 
 

 
 

 

Kansas Crossing Casino Internal Control Amendments 

 

June 12, 2020 

 

 

Item #/ (Description) 

Regulation 

Waiver? Regulation/IC Reference 

Staff 

Recommendation 

KC 88- Director of Gaming 

Operations 

Yes; KAR 

112-104-2 

(b)(5) 

KAR 112-104-2 / KCC 110; 111; 

115; 415; 601; 605; 703; 705; 710; 

717; 804; 806; 815; 818; 833; 835; 

849; 850; 903; 904; 909; 910; 

RGP-001-2; RGP-001-3; RGP-

001-09; RGP-001-10; RGP-001-

11; 1001; 1002; 1003; 1005; 1006; 

2003; 2004; 2005; Security 

Operations; Safety and Crisis 

Manual; Supplemental Job 

Descriptions 

Approval 

 



 
Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission 

700 SW Harrison, Suite 500, Topeka, Kansas 66603 
(785) 296-5800, Fax (785) 296-0900 

 

 

Page 1 of 1 

 
STAFF AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

 
DATE OF MEETING: June 12, 2020 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Disciplinary Review Board Summary Proceeding Orders for:  

2020-2002 Amanda Marie Young-Ayesh 
 
PRESENTER:  None – Consent Agenda 
 
ISSUE SUMMARY: Pursuant to K.A.R. 112-114-1 et seq., the Kansas Racing and Gaming 
Commission’s Disciplinary Review Board (DRB) considered potential gaming regulation 
violations by licensee Amanda Young-Ayesh. A Summary Proceeding Order and Notice of 
Hearing and Right to Waive was issued to her. 
 
2020-2002 Amanda Marie Young-Ayesh 
 
 Amanda Young-Ayesh is the Director of Operations/General Manager of the Hampton 
Inn attached to Kansas Star Casino. On May 1, 2019, KRGC Supervisory Agent Harry Spencer 
met with and provided Ms. Young-Ayesh a KRGC Licensing Process Memo which detailed the 
required process for licensing hotel employees. As part of this meeting, Ms. Young-Ayesh was 
requested to provide a list of all active and terminated hotel employees from January 1, 2019 to 
present. Ms. Young-Ayesh did not provide that list until approximately three weeks later after 
multiple requests from a KRGC agent. From May to September 2019, Ms. Young-Ayesh violated 
the KRGC Licensing Process Memo on nine separate occasions, including by failing to notify the 
KRGC when she withdrew employment offers from applicants and when she terminated two 
employees. Ms. Young-Ayesh was ordered to serve a two-day suspension. Ms. Young-Ayesh has 
stipulated to the above facts and waived the right to a hearing. See attached Summary 
Proceeding Order and Hearing Waiver. 
 
COMMISSION ACTION REQUIRED/REQUESTED: Accept the Hearing Waiver filed by Amanda 
Young-Ayesh and uphold the DRB’s Summary Proceeding Order issued in KRGC Case No. 2020-
2002. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: Staff recommends the Commission accept the Hearing Waiver 
filed by Amanda Young-Ayesh and uphold the DRB’s findings of fact, conclusions of law, and 
sanction issued in KRGC Case No. 2020-2002. 
 







































 
 

BOOT HILL CASINO & RESORT 

REPORT PRESENTED TO 

THE KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION 

JUNE 12,2020 

 

BY: Diane Giardine 

 

1) For the month of May 2020, BHCR experienced a decrease in Total Gaming Revenue of 73.44% over 

prior year May 2019.  Total Slot revenue was down 71.82% and Table Games revenue was down 

91.73%.  BHCR was closed March 18, 2020 through May 21, 2020 by order of Kansas Governor and 

Kansas Lottery.   

 

 

 

Upcoming Promotions & Events 

 

 Earn & Eat Mondays 

 Weekly Food and Beverage Specials 

 Comp Point Multiplier Thursdays 

 Free and Earn and Win Gift Promotions 

 Ram Truck Giveaway 

 

 

Upcoming Entertainment & Events  

 Everclear with Fastball August 29 

 Bridal & Women’s Day Out Expo September 13 

 Lee Brice November 14 

 Jeff Dunham December 11 

 



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 

Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 

700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@krgc.ks.gov 

Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 

Don Brownlee, Executive Director Laura Kelly, Governor 

 

BOOT HILL CASINO & RESORT 

         

Lottery Gaming Facility Revenue-Unaudited* 

         

  March  March  Fiscal YTD  Fiscal YTD 

  2020  2019  2020  2019 

         

Electronic gaming machines  

       
1,590,904.81   3,575,026.95  

     
25,635,523.39   27,384,761.87 

         

Table games  

          
173,316.77   581,634.47  

       
3,369,451.84   3,766,732.03 

         

Other #  

                            
-     1,770.98  

               
4,494.22   6,838.57 

         
Total Lottery Gaming Facility 
Revenue  

       
1,764,221.58   

     
4,158,432.40   

     
29,009,469.45   

     
31,158,332.47  

         

State Share 22%  

          
388,128.75   

        
914,855.13   

       
6,382,083.28   

       
6,854,833.14  

         

Local Share 3%  

             
52,926.65   

        
124,752.97   

          
870,284.08   

          
934,749.97  

         

Problem Gambling Share 2%  

             
35,284.43   

          
83,168.65   

          
580,189.39   

          
623,166.65  

         

Casino Share 73%  

       
1,287,881.75   

     
3,035,655.65   

     
21,176,912.70   

     
22,745,582.70  

         

         

*Unaudited-as reported by the Kansas Lottery Central Computer system.   

         
#Other sweeps, principally lost and found funds. 
 
Covid – 19 closure began March 18, 2020.       

         

         
 



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 

Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 

700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@krgc.ks.gov 

Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 

Don Brownlee, Executive Director Laura Kelly, Governor 

 

BOOT HILL CASINO & RESORT 

         

Lottery Gaming Facility Revenue-Unaudited* 

         

  April  April  Fiscal YTD  Fiscal YTD 

  2020  2019  2020  2019 

         

Electronic gaming machines  

                            
-     3,152,472.63       25,635,523.39   30,537,234.50 

         

Table games  

                            
-     432,429.00         3,369,451.84   4,199,161.03 

         

Other #  

                            
-     141.14                 4,494.22   6,979.71 

         

Total Lottery Gaming Facility Revenue  

                            
-          3,585,042.77        29,009,469.45        34,743,375.24  

         

State Share 22%  

                            
-             788,709.41          6,382,083.28          7,643,542.55  

         

Local Share 3%  

                            
-             107,551.28             870,284.08          1,042,301.26  

         

Problem Gambling Share 2%  

                            
-               71,700.86             580,189.39             694,867.50  

         

Casino Share 73%  

                            
-          2,617,081.22        21,176,912.70        25,362,663.93  

         

         

*Unaudited-as reported by the Kansas Lottery Central Computer system.   

         
#Other sweeps, principally lost and found funds. 
 
No revenue in April 2020 due to Covid - 19 closure.       

         
 



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 

Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 

700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@krgc.ks.gov 

Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 

Don Brownlee, Executive Director Laura Kelly, Governor 

 

BOOT HILL CASINO & RESORT 

         

Lottery Gaming Facility Revenue-Unaudited* 

         

  May  May  Fiscal YTD  Fiscal YTD 

  2020  2019  2020  2019 

         

Electronic gaming machines  

          
935,566.04   

     
3,314,615.46   

     
26,571,089.43   

     
33,851,849.96  

         

Table games  

             
24,389.00   

        
294,348.94   

       
3,393,840.84   

       
4,493,509.97  

         

Other #  

                  
105.12   

                  
47.23   

               
4,599.34   

               
7,026.94  

         
Total Lottery Gaming Facility 
Revenue  

          
960,060.16   

     
3,609,011.63   

     
29,969,529.61   

     
38,352,386.87  

         

State Share 22%  

          
211,213.24   

        
793,982.56   

       
6,593,296.51   

       
8,437,525.11  

         

Local Share 3%  

             
28,801.80   

        
108,270.35   

          
899,085.89   

       
1,150,571.61  

         

Problem Gambling Share 2%  

             
19,201.20   

          
72,180.23   

          
599,390.59   

          
767,047.74  

         

Casino Share 73%  

          
700,843.92   

     
2,634,578.49   

     
21,877,756.62   

     
27,997,242.42  

         

   

*Unaudited-as reported by the Kansas Lottery Central Computer system.   

         

#Other sweeps, principally lost and found funds.       

         

Reopened from Covid - 19 closure on May 22nd.       

         
 



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 

Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 

700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@krgc.ks.gov 

Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 

Don Brownlee, Executive Director Laura Kelly, Governor 

 

 

BOOT HILL CASINO & RESORT 

         

Lottery Gaming Facility Revenue-Unaudited* 

         

  December  December  Fiscal YTD  Fiscal YTD 

  2019  2018  2020  2019 

         

Electronic gaming machines  

       
2,889,174.47   

     
3,196,845.25   

     
18,028,193.51   

     
17,995,715.97  

         

Table games  

          
322,871.04   

        
383,754.23   

       
2,331,487.91   

       
2,543,265.17  

         

Other #  

               
2,096.55   

             
2,631.08   

               
4,239.10   

               
4,970.58  

         
Total Lottery Gaming Facility 
Revenue  

       
3,214,142.06   

     
3,583,230.56   

     
20,363,920.52   

     
20,543,951.72  

         

State Share**  

          
707,111.25   

        
788,310.72   

       
4,480,062.51   

       
4,519,669.38  

         

Local Share 3%  

             
96,424.26   

        
107,496.92   

          
610,917.62   

          
616,318.55  

         

Problem Gambling Share 2%  

             
64,282.84   

          
71,664.61   

          
407,278.41   

          
410,879.03  

         

Casino Share**  

       
2,346,323.70   

     
2,615,758.31   

     
14,865,661.98   

     
14,997,084.76  

         

*Unaudited-as reported by the Kansas Lottery Central Computer system.   

         

** Correction based on Casino Share and State Share not changing until the original contract terminates in 
December of 2024. 

         

#Other sweeps, principally lost and found funds.       

         
 



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 
Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 
700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@krgc.ks.gov 
Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 
Don Brownlee, Executive Director Laura Kelly, Governor 
 

BOOT HILL CASINO & RESORT 
         

Lottery Gaming Facility Revenue-Unaudited* 
         
  January  January  Fiscal YTD  Fiscal YTD 

  2020  2019  2020  2019 

         

Electronic gaming machines  
       

2,944,633.41   
     

2,911,689.28   
     

20,972,826.92   
     

20,907,405.25  

         

Table games  
          

453,310.72   
        

274,198.20   
       

2,784,798.63   
       

2,817,463.37  

         

Other #  
                  

161.98   
                  

31.41   
               

4,401.08   
               

5,001.99  

         
Total Lottery Gaming Facility 
Revenue  

       
3,398,106.11   

     
3,185,918.89   

     
23,762,026.63   

     
23,729,870.61  

         

State Share**  
          

747,583.34   
        

700,902.16   
       

5,227,645.86   
       

5,220,571.53  

         

Local Share 3%  
          

101,943.18   
          

95,577.57   
          

712,860.80   
          

711,896.12  

         

Problem Gambling Share 2%  
             

67,962.12   
          

63,718.38   
          

475,240.53   
          

474,597.41  

         

Casino Share**  
       

2,480,617.46   
     

2,325,720.79   
     

17,346,279.44   
     

17,322,805.55  

         
*Unaudited-as reported by the Kansas Lottery Central Computer system.   
         
** Correction based on Casino Share and State Share not changing until the original contract terminates in 
December of 2024. 

         
#Other sweeps, principally lost and found funds.       
         

 



�� ���������	
�������
������������������������������� ��!� "�#����	
�����������	����$�%�������&����������� '�!�('�!�)'�)!�*�+�,�'�&�-�������.� '�!�)'�)!�*��/�����������&��#�����*��/�������� 0�����-���1&�2�*������� 3445�6788�9:;7<4�=�>?;4>5�� �� �� �� ��8@AABCD�EFGHIJ�KFLHMHAD�>BNBIOBPQIFORHABRS�� � � � � � � � �� � TUVWXYWZ� � TUVWXYWZ� � T[\]Ŷ�_̀a� � T[\]Ŷ�_̀a�� � bcbc� � bcde� � bcbc� � bcde�� �� �� �� ��f̂U]gWhi[]�jYk[ij�kY]l[iU\� � �������mncodnoedpqq��� �����bnecbnmbepqo��� �����brncrrnqdspts��� �����bmnscenomrpeb����� � �� �� �ỲV̂U�jYkU\� � ����������rddnmmqprr��� ��������mqonqmrpde��� �������mndeqndmtpco��� �������mndstnceoptq����� � �� �� �uglUW�v� � ���������������������empdr��� ������������������qtpqc��� ���������������rnrerpbb��� ���������������tncqopte����� � �� �� �h̀gŶ�whggUWZ�xYk[ij�TY][̂[gZ�yUzUiXU� � �������mnrsmnbbdpbr��� �����mnbocncbeprq��� �����bonbrtnbropso��� �����bqneeeneccpco����� � �� �� �{gYgU�{lYWU||� � ����������oqqnmcspqo��� ��������odenrcqprs��� �������tneemnetrptm��� �������tnemeneospcb����� � �� �� �wh]Ŷ�{lYWU�m}� � ����������dcrnreqpqr��� ����������esndccpss��� ����������sdonmtoprr��� ����������sceneeopcc����� � �� �� �~WhV̂Uk�xYkV̂[ij�{lYWU�b}� � �������������qenqqrprb��� ����������qtnrccpte��� ����������trrnecrpeq��� ����������tmeneespcc����� � �� �� ��Y\[ih�{lYWU||� � �������bntrbnotdptd��� �����bnmsondbdptd��� �����denssencmcpet��� �����denocenebopct����� � �� �� ����������������������������������������������������������������������� ��� �� �� �� �������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� �� �� �� ��� ������¡����¢����������������������������������� �� �� ��� �� �� �� ���



KANSAS STAR CASINO 

REPORT PRESENTED TO 

THE KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION 

June 12, 2020 

BY: 

Jeff Babinski – Vice President & General Manager 

 

Operational Notes 

 March admissions down 52.65% from March 2019 

 May admissions down 80.7% from May 2019 

 

March 2020 Revenue #’s 

 Total Gross Gaming Revenue down 54.22% to March 2019 

 Slot Coin-In (Handle) down 52.87% to March 2019 

 Slot hold (gross) down 0.21 pts from March 2019 

 Table Game drop down 49.15% from March 2019 

 Table Game hold is down 3.25 pts from March 2019 

 Poker Room revenue down 53.64% from March 2019 

May 2020 Revenue #’s 

 Total Gross Gaming Revenue down 71.4% to May 2019 

 Slot Coin-In (Handle) down 71.0% to May 2019 

 Slot hold (gross) up 0.62 pts from May 2019 

 Table Game drop down 93.3% from May 2019 

 Table Game hold is up 13.4 pts from May 2019 

 Poker Room revenue down 100% from May 2019 
 

Past Arena Events 

 Nothing to report 

Upcoming Events 

 All events are being postponed or canceled through August 2020 (at a minimum) 

 



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 

Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 

700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@krgc.ks.gov 

Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 

Don Brownlee, Executive Director Laura Kelly, Governor 

 

KANSAS STAR CASINO & RESORT 

         

Lottery Gaming Facility Revenue-Unaudited* 

         

  March  March  Fiscal YTD  Fiscal YTD 

  2020  2019  2020  2019 

         

Electronic gaming machines  

       
7,355,278.90   15,945,865.32  

     
114,175,992.95   118,038,491.04 

         

Table games  

       
1,138,083.00   2,597,543.80  

       
18,293,635.54   19,234,943.50 

         

Other #  

                            
-     103.23  

               
16,561.27   15,980.35 

         
Total Lottery Gaming Facility 
Revenue  

       
8,493,361.90   

      
18,543,512.35   

     
132,486,189.76   

         
137,289,414.89  

         

State Share 22% (Tier 1)**  

       
1,868,539.62   

        
4,079,572.72   

       
29,146,961.75   

           
30,203,671.28  

         
State Share 2% marginal (Tier 
2)**  

                            
-     

                             
-     

             
128,677.75   

                                  
-    

         

Local Share 3%  

          
254,800.86   

            
556,305.37   

         
3,974,585.69   

              
4,118,682.45  

         

Problem Gambling Share 2%  

          
169,867.24   

            
370,870.25   

         
2,649,723.80   

              
2,745,788.30  

         

Casino Share  73%  

       
6,200,154.19   

      
13,536,764.02   

       
96,586,240.77   

         
100,221,272.87  

         

 

*Unaudited-as reported by the Kansas Lottery Central Computer system. 

         

#Other sweeps, principally lost and found funds. 

         
** During Kansas Star’s Fiscal Year of January 1, 2019 to December 31, 2019, revenue exceeded the tax Tier 
1 as stated in their contract.  The Tier 2 tax rate was applied to the revenue above Tier 1. 
 
Covid – 19 closure began March 18, 2020.  



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 

Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 

700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@krgc.ks.gov 

Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 

Don Brownlee, Executive Director Laura Kelly, Governor 

 

KANSAS STAR CASINO & RESORT 

         

Lottery Gaming Facility Revenue-Unaudited* 

         

  April  April  Fiscal YTD  Fiscal YTD 

  2020  2019  2020  2019 

         

Electronic gaming machines  

                            
-     13,214,828.83  

      
114,175,992.95   131,253,319.87 

         

Table games  

                            
-     1,881,462.78  

        
18,293,635.54   21,116,406.28 

         

Other #  

                            
-     231.27  

                
16,561.27   16,211.62 

         
Total Lottery Gaming Facility 
Revenue  

                            
-     

     
15,096,522.88   

      
132,486,189.76   

      
152,385,937.77  

         

State Share 22% (Tier 1)**  

                            
-     

        
3,321,235.03   

        
29,146,961.75   

         
33,524,906.31  

         
State Share 2% marginal (Tier 
2)**  

                            
-     

                            
-     

              
128,677.75   

                                
-    

         

Local Share 3%  

                            
-     

           
452,895.69   

          
3,974,585.69   

           
4,571,578.13  

         

Problem Gambling Share 2%  

                            
-     

           
301,930.46   

          
2,649,723.80   

           
3,047,718.76  

         

Casino Share  73%  

                            
-     

     
11,020,461.70   

        
96,586,240.77   

      
111,241,734.57  

         

 

*Unaudited-as reported by the Kansas Lottery Central Computer system. 

         

#Other sweeps, principally lost and found funds. 

         
** During Kansas Star’s Fiscal Year of January 1, 2019 to December 31, 2019, revenue exceeded the tax Tier 
1 as stated in their contract.  The Tier 2 tax rate was applied to the revenue above Tier 1. 
 
No revenue in April 2020 due to Covid - 19 closure. 



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 

Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 

700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@krgc.ks.gov 

Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 

Don Brownlee, Executive Director Laura Kelly, Governor 

 

KANSAS STAR CASINO & RESORT 

         

Lottery Gaming Facility Revenue-Unaudited* 

         

  May  May  Fiscal YTD  Fiscal YTD 

  2020  2019  2020  2019 

         

Electronic gaming machines  

       
4,757,521.57   

  
14,318,126.39   

  
118,933,514.52   

  
145,571,446.26  

         

Table games  

          
209,996.25   

     
2,002,827.10   

     
18,503,631.79   

     
23,119,233.38  

         

Other #  

                     
82.34   

                
142.82   

             
16,643.61   

             
16,354.44  

         
Total Lottery Gaming Facility 
Revenue  

       
4,967,600.16   

  
16,321,096.31   

  
137,453,789.92   

  
168,707,034.08  

         

State Share 22% (Tier 1)**  

       
1,092,872.04   

     
3,590,641.19   

     
30,239,833.78   

     
37,115,547.50  

         

State Share 2% marginal (Tier 2)**                              -                              -     

          
128,677.75   

                            
-    

         

Local Share 3%  

          
149,028.00   

        
489,632.89   

       
4,123,613.70   

       
5,061,211.02  

         

Problem Gambling Share 2%  

             
99,352.00   

        
326,421.93   

       
2,749,075.80   

       
3,374,140.68  

         

Casino Share  73%  

       
3,626,348.12   

  
11,914,400.31   

  
100,212,588.89   

  
123,156,134.88  

         

*Unaudited-as reported by the Kansas Lottery Central Computer system. 

         

#Other sweeps, principally lost and found funds. 

         
** During Kansas Star’s Fiscal Year of January 1, 2019 to December 31, 2019, revenue exceeded the tax Tier 
1 as stated in their contract.  The Tier 2 tax rate was applied to the revenue above Tier 1. 

         

Reopened from Covid - 19 closure on May 23rd.     



HOLLYWOOD CASINO AT KANSAS SPEEDWAY 
REPORT PRESENTED TO 

 THE KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION 
June 12, 2020 

 
BY: RICK SKINNER – VICE PRESIDENT & GENERAL MANAGER 

 
March thru May 2020 

 
March 2020 Revenue Numbers (open for 17 gaming days) 

 Total Gaming Revenue was $6.4M – a decrease of 55.4% 

 Slot Revenue came in at $5.7M – a decrease of 56.8%  

 Table Games Revenue was $707K – a decrease of 39.8%  

March Events 

 Casino Temporarily Closed – Effective March 18, 2020 

May Events 

 Casino closed thru May 24, 2020 (68 days) – approved to re-open on May 25, 2020 

May 2020 Revenue Numbers (open for 7 limited gaming days) 

 Total Gaming Revenue was $4.35M  

 Slot Revenue came in at $4.25M  

 Table Games Revenue was $96K  (opened just 6 Blackjack tables on May 28, 2020 (4 days)) 

Upcoming Events 

 No planned events 

 Taking everything day by day 

 We are just happy to be open! 

 

 



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 

Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 

700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@krgc.ks.gov 

Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 

Don Brownlee, Executive Director Laura Kelly, Governor 

 

HOLLYWOOD CASINO & RESORT 

         

Lottery Gaming Facility Revenue-Unaudited* 

         

  March  March  Fiscal YTD  Fiscal YTD 

  2020  2019  2020  2019 

         

Electronic gaming machines  

     
5,680,263.08   13,156,868.68  

     
97,386,518.90   99,711,234.45 

         

Table games  

        
706,796.68   1,143,269.39  

     
11,912,460.71   12,870,245.29 

         

Other #                           -     30,667.23  

             
15,738.96   41,098.71 

         
Total Lottery Gaming Facility 
Revenue  

     
6,387,059.76   

     
14,330,805.30   

  
109,314,718.57   

  
112,622,578.45  

         

State Share 22%  

     
1,405,153.15   

       
3,152,777.17   

     
24,049,238.09   

     
24,776,967.26  

         

Local Share 3%  

        
191,611.79   

           
429,924.16   

       
3,279,441.56   

       
3,378,677.35  

         

Problem Gambling Share 2%  

        
127,741.20   

           
286,616.11   

       
2,186,294.37   

       
2,252,451.57  

         

Casino Share 73%  

     
4,662,553.62   

     
10,461,487.87   

     
79,799,744.56   

     
82,214,482.27  

         

         

*Unaudited-as reported by the Kansas Lottery Central Computer system.   

         
#Other sweeps, principally lost and found funds. 
 
Covid – 19 closure began March 18, 2020.       

         

         
 



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 

Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 

700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@krgc.ks.gov 

Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 

Don Brownlee, Executive Director Laura Kelly, Governor 

 

HOLLYWOOD CASINO & RESORT 

         

Lottery Gaming Facility Revenue-Unaudited* 

         

  April  April  Fiscal YTD  Fiscal YTD 

  2020  2019  2020  2019 

         

Electronic gaming machines  

                         
-     11,232,451.30  

        
97,386,518.90   110,943,685.75 

         

Table games  

                         
-     1,118,180.74  

        
11,912,460.71   13,988,426.03 

         

Other #  

                         
-     227.20  

                
15,738.96   41,325.91 

         
Total Lottery Gaming Facility 
Revenue  

                         
-     

      
12,350,859.24   

     
109,314,718.57   

     
124,973,437.69  

         

State Share 22%  

                         
-     

        
2,717,189.03   

        
24,049,238.09   

        
27,494,156.29  

         

Local Share 3%  

                         
-     

           
370,525.78   

          
3,279,441.56   

          
3,749,203.13  

         

Problem Gambling Share 2%  

                         
-     

           
247,017.18   

          
2,186,294.37   

          
2,499,468.75  

         

Casino Share 73%  

                         
-     

        
9,016,127.25   

        
79,799,744.56   

        
91,230,609.51  

         

         

*Unaudited-as reported by the Kansas Lottery Central Computer system.   

         
#Other sweeps, principally lost and found funds. 
 
No revenue in April 2020 due to Covid - 19 closure.     

         
 



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 

Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 

700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@krgc.ks.gov 

Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 

Don Brownlee, Executive Director Laura Kelly, Governor 

 

HOLLYWOOD CASINO & RESORT 

         

Lottery Gaming Facility Revenue-Unaudited* 

         

  May  May  Fiscal YTD  Fiscal YTD 

  2020  2019  2020  2019 

         

Electronic gaming machines  

     
4,253,069.90   

  
12,000,731.12   

  
101,639,588.80   

  
122,944,416.87  

         

Table games  

          
96,073.50   

     
1,507,994.24   

     
12,008,534.21   

     
15,496,420.27  

         

Other #  

                
246.45   

                  
76.11   

             
15,985.41   

             
41,402.02  

         
Total Lottery Gaming Facility 
Revenue  

     
4,349,389.85   

  
13,508,801.47   

  
113,664,108.42   

  
138,482,239.16  

         

State Share 22%  

        
956,865.77   

     
2,971,936.32   

     
25,006,103.85   

     
30,466,092.62  

         

Local Share 3%  

        
130,481.70   

        
405,264.04   

       
3,409,923.25   

       
4,154,467.17  

         

Problem Gambling Share 2%  

          
86,987.80   

        
270,176.03   

       
2,273,282.17   

       
2,769,644.78  

         

Casino Share 73%  

     
3,175,054.59   

     
9,861,425.07   

     
82,974,799.15   

  
101,092,034.59  

         

         

*Unaudited-as reported by the Kansas Lottery Central Computer system.   

         

#Other sweeps, principally lost and found funds.       

         

Reopened from Covid - 19 closure on May 25th.     

         
 



KANSAS CROSSING CASINO + HOTEL 

REPORT PRESENTED TO 

THE KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION 

June 12, 2020 

BY: Jeff McKain 

 

Reopening dates and year over year preliminary results for May; 

   

 Slots operations reopening date: 5-22-20 

 Table Games operations reopening date: 5-29-20 

 80.8% Decrease in Admissions 

 66.4% Decrease in Net Slot Revenue 

 90.5%  Decrease in Table Game Revenue 

 64.6%  Overall decrease in Net Gaming Revenue 

 

Promotions + Events 

 

 May 

o March core offers were extended into May 

 

 June 

o Bally EBS U-spin on Sundays 

o Bank Account Bonanza entries on Mondays and Fridays. Bank Account 

Grand Prize drawing on June 26th.  $60,000 top prize.  

o Hot Seats on Tuesdays and Thursdays. $1,800 per night.   

o Drink specials on Thursdays featuring Brutus Ale.  

o Multiplier Madness on Tuesdays – Point multipliers up to 5x, 10x, 15x, 

20x and 25x. 

o Camp 49 Wednesdays featuring lunch specials and point multipliers.  
 



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 

Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 

700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@krgc.ks.gov 

Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 

Don Brownlee, Executive Director Laura Kelly, Governor 

 

KANSAS CROSSING CASINO & RESORT 

         

Lottery Gaming Facility Revenue-Unaudited* 

         

  March  March  Fiscal YTD  Fiscal YTD 

  2020  2019  2020  2019 

         

Electronic gaming machines  

       
1,456,712.88   3,092,824.65  

     
23,086,025.52   23,109,110.66 

         

Table games  

             
99,815.50   252,583.50  

       
1,967,531.50   2,236,885.50 

         

Other #  

                     
15.00   529.78  

               
1,506.54   3,947.02 

         
Total Lottery Gaming Facility 
Revenue  

       
1,556,543.38   

     
3,345,937.93   

     
25,055,063.56   

     
25,349,943.18  

         

State Share 22%  

          
342,439.54   

        
736,106.34   

       
5,512,113.98   

       
5,576,987.50  

         

Local Share 3%  

             
46,696.30   

        
100,378.14   

          
751,651.91   

          
760,498.30  

         

Problem Gambling Share 2%  

             
31,130.87   

          
66,918.76   

          
501,101.27   

          
506,998.86  

         

Casino Share 73%  

       
1,136,276.67   

     
2,442,534.69   

     
18,290,196.40   

     
18,505,458.52  

         

*Unaudited-as reported by the Kansas Lottery Central Computer system.   

         
#Other sweeps, principally lost and found funds. 
 
Covid – 19 closure began March 18, 2020.       

         

 

 



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 

Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 

700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@krgc.ks.gov 

Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 

Don Brownlee, Executive Director Laura Kelly, Governor 

 

KANSAS CROSSING CASINO & RESORT 

         

Lottery Gaming Facility Revenue-Unaudited* 

         

  April  April  Fiscal YTD  Fiscal YTD 

  2020  2019  2020  2019 

         

Electronic gaming machines  

                            
-     2,657,693.76  

     
23,086,025.52   25,766,804.42 

         

Table games  

                            
-     276,796.50  

       
1,967,531.50   2,513,682.00 

         

Other #  

                            
-     65.00  

               
1,506.54   4,012.02 

         
Total Lottery Gaming Facility 
Revenue  

                            
-     

     
2,934,555.26   

     
25,055,063.56   

     
28,284,498.44  

         

State Share 22%  

                            
-     

        
645,602.16   

       
5,512,113.98   

       
6,222,589.66  

         

Local Share 3%  

                            
-     

          
88,036.66   

          
751,651.91   

          
848,534.95  

         

Problem Gambling Share 2%  

                            
-     

          
58,691.11   

          
501,101.27   

          
565,689.97  

         

Casino Share 73%  

                            
-     

     
2,142,225.34   

     
18,290,196.40   

     
20,647,683.86  

         

*Unaudited-as reported by the Kansas Lottery Central Computer system.   

         
#Other sweeps, principally lost and found funds. 
 
No revenue in April 2020 due to Covid - 19 closure.       

         

 

 



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 

Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 

700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@krgc.ks.gov 

Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 

Don Brownlee, Executive Director Laura Kelly, Governor 

 

KANSAS CROSSING CASINO & RESORT 

         

Lottery Gaming Facility Revenue-Unaudited* 

         

  May  May  Fiscal YTD  Fiscal YTD 

  2020  2019  2020  2019 

         

Electronic gaming machines  

       
1,139,176.40   

     
3,030,506.51   

     
24,225,201.92   

     
28,797,310.93  

         

Table games  

             
24,095.50   

        
252,821.00   

       
1,991,627.00   

       
2,766,503.00  

         

Other #  

                     
52.00   

                  
56.00   

               
1,558.54   

               
4,068.02  

         
Total Lottery Gaming Facility 
Revenue  

       
1,163,323.90   

     
3,283,383.51   

     
26,218,387.46   

     
31,567,881.95  

         

State Share 22%  

          
255,931.26   

        
722,344.37   

       
5,768,045.24   

       
6,944,934.03  

         

Local Share 3%  

             
34,899.72   

          
98,501.51   

          
786,551.62   

          
947,036.46  

         

Problem Gambling Share 2%  

             
23,266.48   

          
65,667.67   

          
524,367.75   

          
631,357.64  

         

Casino Share 73%  

          
849,226.45   

     
2,396,869.96   

     
19,139,422.85   

     
23,044,553.82  

         

*Unaudited-as reported by the Kansas Lottery Central Computer system.   

         

#Other sweeps, principally lost and found funds.       

         

Reopened from Covid - 19 closure on May 22nd.     

 

 



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 

Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 

700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@krgc.ks.gov 

Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 

Don Brownlee, Executive Director Laura Kelly, Governor 

 

 

Revenue Source Boot Hill Casino Kansas Star Casino Hollywood Casino Kansas Crossing Casino Total All Casinos 

EGM 1,590,905$            7,355,279$                5,680,263$                  1,456,713$                         16,083,160$              

Table Games 173,317                  1,138,083                   706,797                        99,816                                 2,118,012                   

Other # -                                -                                    -                                     15                                          15                                 

Total 1,764,222$            8,493,362$                6,387,060$                 1,556,543$                        18,201,187$             

Fiscal Year Boot Hill Kansas Star Hollywood Kansas Crossing Total All Casinos

2010 20,663,987$          -$                                  -$                                   -$                                          20,663,987$              

2011 40,055,280            -                                    -                                     -                                             40,055,280                

2012 43,886,501            98,855,928                54,622,687                  -                                             197,365,116              

2013 43,353,504            192,187,166              124,993,721               -                                             360,534,391              

2014 39,906,275            181,079,650              132,036,392               -                                             353,022,317              

2015 40,513,186            181,754,051              142,759,065               -                                             365,026,302              

2016 38,937,088            181,600,677              143,833,330               -                                             364,371,095              

2017 40,222,932            178,105,968              144,582,037               8,206,260                           371,117,197              

2018 41,186,638            182,084,527              148,770,984               32,465,853                         404,508,001              

2019 41,589,906            184,157,835              150,790,865               34,489,213                         411,027,819              

2020 29,009,469            132,486,190              109,314,719               25,055,064                         295,865,441              

Total Since Opening 419,324,766$       1,512,311,992$       1,151,703,799$         100,216,390$                    3,183,556,947$       

Recipients Boot Hill Kansas Star Hollywood Kansas Crossing Total All Casinos

State of Kansas 6,382,083               29,275,639                24,049,238                  5,512,114                           65,219,075                

Local Governments 870,284                  3,974,586                   3,279,442                    751,652                               8,875,963                   

 Problem Gambling 

and Addictions Fund 580,189                  2,649,724                   2,186,294                    501,101                               5,917,309                   

Casino Manager 21,176,913            96,586,241                79,799,745                  18,290,196                         215,853,094              

Total 29,009,469            132,486,190             109,314,719               25,055,064                        295,865,441             

Recipients Boot Hill Kansas Star Hollywood Kansas Crossing Total All Casinos 

State of Kansas 92,251,449            332,837,316              253,374,836               22,047,606                         700,511,206              

Local Governments 12,579,743            45,369,360                34,551,114                  3,006,492                           95,506,708                

 Problem Gambling 

and Addictions Fund 8,386,495               30,246,240                23,034,076                  2,004,328                           63,671,139                

Casino Manager 306,107,079          1,103,859,077          840,743,773               73,157,964                         2,323,867,894          

Total 419,324,766         1,512,311,992          1,151,703,799           100,216,390                      3,183,556,947          

*Unaudited-as reported by the Kansas Lottery Central Computer system.

#Other sweeps, principally lost and found funds.

March 2020 Casino Financials

Casino Gaming Revenue for Month Ending March 31, 2020

Cumulative Gaming Revenue per Fiscal Year

Fund Distribution FY 2020

Fund Distribution Since Opening



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 

Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 

700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@krgc.ks.gov 

Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 

Don Brownlee, Executive Director Laura Kelly, Governor 

 

 

Revenue Source Boot Hill Casino Kansas Star Casino Hollywood Casino Kansas Crossing Casino Total All Casinos 

EGM -$                              -$                                  -$                                   -$                                          -$                                  

Table Games -                                -                                    -                                     -                                             -                                    

Other # -                                -                                    -                                     -                                             -                                    

Total -$                             -$                                 -$                                  -$                                          -$                                 

Fiscal Year Boot Hill Kansas Star Hollywood Kansas Crossing Total All Casinos

2010 20,663,987$          -$                                  -$                                   -$                                          20,663,987$              

2011 40,055,280            -                                    -                                     -                                             40,055,280                

2012 43,886,501            98,855,928                54,622,687                  -                                             197,365,116              

2013 43,353,504            192,187,166              124,993,721               -                                             360,534,391              

2014 39,906,275            181,079,650              132,036,392               -                                             353,022,317              

2015 40,513,186            181,754,051              142,759,065               -                                             365,026,302              

2016 38,937,088            181,600,677              143,833,330               -                                             364,371,095              

2017 40,222,932            178,105,968              144,582,037               8,206,260                           371,117,197              

2018 41,186,638            182,084,527              148,770,984               32,465,853                         404,508,001              

2019 41,589,906            184,157,835              150,790,865               34,489,213                         411,027,819              

2020 29,009,469            132,486,190              109,314,719               25,055,064                         295,865,441              

Total Since Opening 419,324,766$       1,512,311,992$       1,151,703,799$         100,216,390$                    3,183,556,947$       

Recipients Boot Hill Kansas Star Hollywood Kansas Crossing Total All Casinos

State of Kansas 6,382,083               29,275,639                24,049,238                  5,512,114                           65,219,075                

Local Governments 870,284                  3,974,586                   3,279,442                    751,652                               8,875,963                   

 Problem Gambling 

and Addictions Fund 580,189                  2,649,724                   2,186,294                    501,101                               5,917,309                   

Casino Manager 21,176,913            96,586,241                79,799,745                  18,290,196                         215,853,094              

Total 29,009,469            132,486,190             109,314,719               25,055,064                        295,865,441             

Recipients Boot Hill Kansas Star Hollywood Kansas Crossing Total All Casinos 

State of Kansas 92,251,449            332,837,316              253,374,836               22,047,606                         700,511,206              

Local Governments 12,579,743            45,369,360                34,551,114                  3,006,492                           95,506,708                

 Problem Gambling 

and Addictions Fund 8,386,495               30,246,240                23,034,076                  2,004,328                           63,671,139                

Casino Manager 306,107,079          1,103,859,077          840,743,773               73,157,964                         2,323,867,894          

Total 419,324,766         1,512,311,992          1,151,703,799           100,216,390                      3,183,556,947          

*Unaudited-as reported by the Kansas Lottery Central Computer system.

#Other sweeps, principally lost and found funds.

April 2020 Casino Financials

Casino Gaming Revenue for Month Ending April 30, 2020

Cumulative Gaming Revenue per Fiscal Year

Fund Distribution FY 2020

Fund Distribution Since Opening



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 

Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 

700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@krgc.ks.gov 

Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 

Don Brownlee, Executive Director Laura Kelly, Governor 

 

 

Revenue Source Boot Hill Casino Kansas Star Casino Hollywood Casino Kansas Crossing Casino Total All Casinos 

EGM 935,566$                4,757,522$                4,253,070$                  1,139,176$                         11,085,334$              

Table Games 24,389                     209,996                      96,074                          24,096                                 354,554                      

Other # 105                           82                                 246                                52                                          486                               

Total 960,060$               4,967,600$                4,349,390$                 1,163,324$                        11,440,374$             

Fiscal Year Boot Hill Kansas Star Hollywood Kansas Crossing Total All Casinos

2010 20,663,987$          -$                                  -$                                   -$                                          20,663,987$              

2011 40,055,280            -                                    -                                     -                                             40,055,280                

2012 43,886,501            98,855,928                54,622,687                  -                                             197,365,116              

2013 43,353,504            192,187,166              124,993,721               -                                             360,534,391              

2014 39,906,275            181,079,650              132,036,392               -                                             353,022,317              

2015 40,513,186            181,754,051              142,759,065               -                                             365,026,302              

2016 38,937,088            181,600,677              143,833,330               -                                             364,371,095              

2017 40,222,932            178,105,968              144,582,037               8,206,260                           371,117,197              

2018 41,186,638            182,084,527              148,770,984               32,465,853                         404,508,001              

2019 41,589,906            184,157,835              150,790,865               34,489,213                         411,027,819              

2020 29,969,530            137,453,790              113,664,108               26,218,387                         307,305,815              

Total Since Opening 420,284,826$       1,517,279,593$       1,156,053,189$         101,379,713$                    3,194,997,321$       

Recipients Boot Hill Kansas Star Hollywood Kansas Crossing Total All Casinos

State of Kansas 6,593,297               30,368,512                25,006,104                  5,768,045                           67,735,957                

Local Governments 899,086                  4,123,614                   3,409,923                    786,552                               9,219,174                   

 Problem Gambling 

and Addictions Fund 599,391                  2,749,076                   2,273,282                    524,368                               6,146,116                   

Casino Manager 21,877,757            100,212,589              82,974,799                  19,139,423                         224,204,567              

Total 29,969,530            137,453,790             113,664,108               26,218,387                        307,305,815             

Recipients Boot Hill Kansas Star Hollywood Kansas Crossing Total All Casinos 

State of Kansas 92,462,662            333,930,188              254,331,702               22,303,537                         703,028,088              

Local Governments 12,608,545            45,518,388                34,681,596                  3,041,391                           95,849,920                

 Problem Gambling 

and Addictions Fund 8,405,697               30,345,592                23,121,064                  2,027,594                           63,899,946                

Casino Manager 306,807,923          1,107,485,425          843,918,828               74,007,191                         2,332,219,367          

Total 420,284,826         1,517,279,593          1,156,053,189           101,379,713                      3,194,997,321          

*Unaudited-as reported by the Kansas Lottery Central Computer system.

#Other sweeps, principally lost and found funds.

May 2020 Casino Financials

Casino Gaming Revenue for Month Ending May 31, 2020

Cumulative Gaming Revenue per Fiscal Year

Fund Distribution FY 2020

Fund Distribution Since Opening



 
  

 
 

 
                        

 
 

 
 

 
06.02.2020 

62.6%
37.4%

VEP Gender

Male

Female

65.9%
34.1%

Exclusion Period

2-Year

Lifetime

0.2% 0.9%

24.5%

14.4%

47.5%

2.7%
10.0%

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

NW NC NE SW SC SE Other

Lottery Region

0.0%
3.4%

21.6%

27.6% 26.5%

15.4%

5.5%

Under 18 18-24 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 65 Older

Age of VEP

38

27

34

20
24

18 20
25 25

15

28
23

16

31

22
17

25
21 20 18 20

27 25 2523

31 33

27

16

25 23 22
17

29

16 18

34

13

28
33

19 21 20
15

31
27 27

2422
18

24
27

24

14

21

31

22

32

24
28

15
20

26 26
22 22 20

24
21 22 23 23

19 17 17

0 0

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

VEP Enrollments by Year

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Voluntary Exclusion Program  
January 2010 – May 2020 

Voluntary Exclusions = 2381 
Violation Incidents = 305 (262 individuals) 

 

African Am.
9.5%

Asian/P.I.
16.7%

Caucasian
61.6%

Lat/His
10.2%

Native Am.
0.44%

Other
1.7%

Ethnicity



 

 

 

 

  

    

06/02/2020 

KRGC Voluntarily Excluded Persons 
December 2009 – May 2020 

 

Colorado – 2 
Iowa – 1  
Kansas-2130 
Missouri – 183 
Nebraska – 5  
Oklahoma – 38   
Other-21 
 
 

  

TOTAL VEPs = 2381 

 

16 

 

18
 

4 
54 

 220 

 

998 

 

 

 

 

22 

1 
15 

1 
55 

 

 

269 

 

49 

 

 

 

 

 

2 

2 

141 

 

 
41 

 

 
4 

 6 
17 

5 

 

1 

 

2 

 

39 

 

2 

 
2 

1 

 2 

17 

 

9 

8 

 

 

3 

1 

5 

 

 
   2 

  8 

31 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2 

2 

1 

5 

2 

3 

1 

2 

4 

 

4 

2 1 

1 1 

2 2 

1 4 

2 

2 

8 

 

3 

3 

 

 

1 

 

1 



 
Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission 

700 SW Harrison, Suite 500, Topeka, Kansas 66603 
(785) 296-5800, Fax (785) 296-0900 

 

 

   

STAFF AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

MEETING DATE: June 12, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM: Quarterly Reports on (1) staff out-of-state travel, (2) licensing and (3) illegal 
gambling  

PRESENTER:  Don Brownlee 

To ensure that it is being consistent and efficient, the commission has requested quarterly updates on 
out-of-state travel, licensing matters, and illegal gambling efforts. 
 

I. OUT-OF-STATE TRAVEL 
  The quarterly out-of-state travel report includes the employees who traveled and the purpose of the trip 

and the total expenses incurred for the trip.  Because the Commission maintains its background investigation details 
as highly confidential, the quarterly travel report does not include out-of-state trips for investigative or targeted 
purposes.   

For the first quarter (January through March) of 2020, commission staff out-of-state travel includes: 

Purpose of Trip Traveler Dates Destination Registration Total 

GLI Training –  

Improve your Event – 
Wagering IQ 

Todd Allen 
02/04/2020 – 
02/07/2020 

Wheat Ridge, CO $999 $2,137.34 

GLI Training – 

2020 North American 
Regulator’s Roundtable 

Roger Bailey 
03/03/2020 – 
03/06/2020 

Las Vegas, NV $0 $1,109.16 

GLI Training – 

2020 North American 
Regulator’s Roundtable 

Don Brownlee 
03/03/2020 – 
03/06/2020 

Las Vegas, NV $0 $736.07 

 



Staff Agenda Memorandum Date: June 12, 2020 Page 2 

  

II. LICENSING 

 Objectives of the commission include conducting timely, but thorough, background investigations 
on all gaming employees, management contractors, manufacturers and distributors seeking licensure at 
lottery gaming facilities located in this state. Background investigations are conducted to protect the 
public interest by maintaining a legitimate and viable gaming industry assuring honesty, good character 
and integrity of racing and gaming facility operators, employees, and vendors.  Following is the licensing 
report for the January through March 2020 quarter.  The three previous quarters are included for 
comparison purposes. 

 

Jan-Mar 
2020 

Oct-Dec 
2019 

Jul-Sep 
2019 

Apr-Jun 
2019 

     

VENDORS, SUPPLIERS, MANAGERS:     

Corporate permanent licenses approved 1 5 0 4 

Corporate temporary licenses approved* 0 0 1 2 

Corporate employee licenses approved 121 81 84 152 

Corporate renewal licenses approved 4 17 4 5 

Corporate employee licenses renewed 73 128 79 110 

Corporate employee licenses denied 0 1 1 4 

     

BOOT HILL CASINO EMPLOYEE LICENSES     

Permanent license approvals 24 24 27 23 

Temporary license approvals* 25 14 30 50 

Renewal license approvals 34 32 23 13 

Licenses denied 0 2 0 0 

     

HOLLYWOOD CASINO EMPLOYEE LICENSES     

Permanent license approvals 48 55 37 48 

Temporary license approvals* 58 66 52 50 

Renewal license approvals 41 87 94 77 

Licenses denied 3 5 5 4 

     

KANSAS STAR CASINO EMPLOYEE LICENSES     

Permanent license approvals 38 96 62 69 

Temporary license approvals* 46 76 79 112 

Renewal license approvals 77 97 86 84 

Licenses denied 0 0 2 0 

     

KANASAS CROSSING CASINO EMPLOYEE 
LICENSES 

    

Permanent license approvals 23 39 57 34 

Temporary license approvals* 25 31 36 54 

Renewal license approvals 18 17 4 21 

Licenses denied 1 0 0 0 

*Temporary licenses approved will still need to be permanently approved in future quarter(s) once all back 
grounding activities are completed. 



Staff Agenda Memorandum Date: June 12, 2020 Page 3 

  

III. ILLEGAL GAMBLING 

Following passage of expanded gaming in Kansas, the Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission 
(KRGC) has been the go-to resource for local law enforcement, prosecutors, and the public on illegal 
gambling questions, education, and complaints. The KRGC responds to email and phone complaints and 
inquiries, conducts continuing legal education seminars for prosecutors, assists local law enforcement 
agencies with illegal gambling investigations, and conducts civil seizures of illegal gambling devices for 
forfeiture, all in an effort to curtail illegal gambling in bars, restaurants, convenience stores, and other 
venues throughout Kansas. 

 
Since 2008, the Commission has received 2,277 total illegal gambling-related questions or 

complaints from the general public.  During the first quarter (Q-1) of 2020, the Commission received fifty-
three (53) calls and emails from the general public, up twenty-nine (29) from the previous quarter and up 
thirteen (13) from the first quarter of 2019. 

 
Of the fifty-three (53) calls and emails received in Q-1, eight (8) involved raffles; eleven (11) 

involved slot machines; seven (7) involved poker; one (1) involved a quarter slider machine; and twenty-
six (26) involved other types of gambling.  Of the twenty-six (26) other calls received, ten (10) involved 
bingo; one (1) involved the legality of a “corn hole” tournament; three (3) involved the “super bowl 
squares” game; four (4) involved fantasy sports; five (5) involved fundraising ideas; and three (3) involved 
arcade games.   

 
Breakdown of illegal gambling inquiries and complaints to-date: 

 

The above chart does not reflect calls and activity related to the following: 

 Reports made to KRGC agents by other law enforcement officers around the state. 

 Discussions with local law enforcement and district and county attorneys regarding the legal 
aspects of illegal gambling and the services that KRGC can provide. 

Quarter 
Slider 297

Raffle 511

Slot 579

Poker 404

Internet 50

Other 436



Staff Agenda Memorandum Date: June 12, 2020 Page 4 

  

 Time spent by agents and legal counsel to assist in active local investigations and prosecutions. 

 Time spent pursuing seizures and forfeitures of illegal gambling devices. 

 Inquiries from the public that are answered through access to KRGC’s Illegal Gambling 
Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) web page. KRGC updated the FAQs portion of the webpage 
in late January 2014. During the six years and three months since KRGC began tracking the new 
page, there have been a total of 19,706 unique page views.   
 
A total of 857 unique page views were made during the first quarter of 2020. The Illegal 
Gambling FAQs page can be found here: http://www.krgc.ks.gov/index.php/racing-gaming-
law/illegal-gambling/faq-s-2 . It may also be accessed from the KRGC main page 
(www.krgc.ks.gov) by selecting Public Info/Illegal Gambling FAQ’s from the drop down menu 
option. 

 
In 2019, the KRGC submitted multiple incident reports to the Kansas Asset Seizure Forfeiture Repository 
(KASFR) in accordance with the Kansas Asset Seizure and Forfeiture Act, K.S.A. 60-4101, and KBI 
guidelines. During Q-1, the KRGC prepared and submitted the agency’s first annual report to KASFR for 
2019 seizures and forfeitures. The complete KASFR annual report is available on the main page of the 
KRGC website, under the heading “In the News”.  
 
During the first quarter of 2020, the KRGC also: 
 

 conducted an illegal gambling device seizure in Douglas County; 

 assisted with machine forensics on 295 illegal gambling devices; 

 testified in a Johnson County illegal gambling case; and 

 provided information to law enforcement officers on illegal gambling machine forensics in 
Wichita.  

 

http://www.krgc.ks.gov/index.php/racing-gaming-law/illegal-gambling/faq-s-2
http://www.krgc.ks.gov/index.php/racing-gaming-law/illegal-gambling/faq-s-2
http://www.krgc.ks.gov/
http://www.krgc.ks.gov/


  
State of Kansas 

2019 Civil Asset Forfeiture Report 
April 15, 2020 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

A Report from the Kansas Bureau of Investigation  
to the Kansas Legislature  

Pursuant to K.S.A. 60-4127 
 

Kirk D. Thompson 
Director 

 
 



2 
 

 

Table of Contents 
Background ............................................................................................................................................... 3 

Table 1: Property Seized and Forfeited .................................................................................................. 5 

Table 2: State Forfeiture Fund Expenditures ........................................................................................ 8 

Table 3: Federal Forfeiture Fund Expenditures .................................................................................... 9 

Table 4: Non-Compliant Agencies ......................................................................................................... 10 

Visual 1: Owner/Possessor Race and Ethnicity .................................................................................... 11 

Visual 2: Owner/Possessor Gender Total ............................................................................................. 11 

Visual 3: Owner/Possessor Age .............................................................................................................. 12 

Visual 4: Owner/Possessor Arrested ..................................................................................................... 12 

Visual 5: Initiating Law Enforcement Activity .................................................................................... 13 

Visual 6: Place of Seizure ....................................................................................................................... 13 

Visual 7: Legal Authority Under Which Property was Seized ........................................................... 14 

Visual 8: Agency Disposition of Seized Property ................................................................................. 14 

Visual 9: Primary Criminal Offense Related to Seizure ..................................................................... 15 

Visual 10: Criminal Case Disposition at Time of Forfeiture Disposition ........................................... 15 

Visual 11: Ownership of Seized Property Claimed or Denied ............................................................ 16 

Visual 12: Seized Currency, Ownership Claimed or Denied by Possessor ........................................ 16 

Visual 13: Forfeited Currency, Civil Forfeiture Case Disposition ..................................................... 17 

Visual 14: Kansas Map – Number of Incidents by County ................................................................. 18 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



3 
 

Background 

The Kansas Standard Asset Seizure and Forfeiture Act (KSASFA), K.S.A. 60-4101, et seq., was passed in 1994. 
This act governs the process by which a law enforcement agency may seize and take ownership of property 
used in the commission of a crime. In 2018, the Kansas Legislature passed K.S.A. 60-4127 requiring all Kansas 
law enforcement agencies, including Police Departments (PDs), Sheriff’s Offices (SOs), and state law 
enforcement agencies, to report asset seizure and forfeiture information to the Kansas Asset Seizure and 
Forfeiture Repository (KASFR).  

The KASFR website was launched in accordance with the 2018 legislation, to provide Kansas law enforcement 
agencies with a method to report asset seizure and forfeiture information. The website allows the Kansas 
Bureau of Investigation (KBI) to collect and maintain the reports submitted by law enforcement agencies and 
provide relevant information about asset seizures and forfeitures in the state to Kansas Citizens and the 
Legislature. 

In addition to collecting information, the website provides a means for the information to be publicly available 
in two formats. Data can be downloaded in the form of a spreadsheet for sorting and research purposes. Visual 
representations of the data from across the state can be seen in interactive charts and graphs on dashboards. The 
visuals allow a user to interact with the dashboards to filter the data in various ways. For instance, when 
viewing the map of the state, the information can be restricted to a single county by clicking on that county.   

There are two different forms for submitting civil asset forfeiture data, the Incident Report Form and the Annual 
Report Form. 

The Incident Report Form collects information related to the seizure of property once there is a completed 
forfeiture action. The data collected on an Incident Report includes, but is not limited to, information such as: 

• The county from which the property was seized 
• The name of the seizing law enforcement agency 
• The date the property was seized 
• The case numbers from associated criminal and civil actions 
• The demographics of the owner(s) and/or the possessor(s) of the property 
• Information pertaining to the arrest, prosecution and disposition of the criminal case related to the 

forfeiture 
• The initiating law enforcement activity giving rise to the forfeiture action 
• The legal authority under which property was seized 
• The primary criminal offense leading to the seizure 
• The location of the seizure 
• The estimated value of any property seized for forfeiture 
• The nature, quantity and value of any contraband seized 
• The agency disposition of the seized property (forwarded to the prosecutor for civil filing or returned to 

the owner)  
• The rationale for transfer of any state forfeiture action to federal agency  
• State civil forfeiture case disposition information  
• Whether the possessor was represented by legal counsel 
• Whether ownership of forfeited property was claimed/denied by the possessor 
• Whether there were any additional interest holder(s) 
• The total value of currency/property forfeited to agency 
• Any costs, fees, and shared proceeds associated with forfeiture case 

https://kasfr.kbi.ks.gov/


4 
 

The Annual Report Form is a financial summary for each agency’s three forfeiture fund accounts. The accounts 
include the state forfeiture fund, pending state forfeiture fund, and federal forfeiture fund. The state forfeiture 
fund is a law enforcement agency’s account for currency and proceeds from the sale of forfeited property on 
completed state forfeiture cases. The pending state forfeiture fund is an agency’s account for holding seized 
currency for which there has been no completed forfeiture action. The federal forfeiture fund account is a law 
enforcement agency’s account that holds federally shared proceeds from the sale of property on completed 
forfeiture cases through federal court as part of the federal Equitable Sharing Program.  

The Kansas Bureau of Investigation uses this information to determine if an agency is in substantial compliance 
of the act’s reporting requirements as defined in the KASFR Handbook. To be in substantial compliance, an 
agency’s forfeiture fund accounts must each have less than a $5,000 difference between the actual beginning 
balance as reported, minus expenditures, plus deposits in comparison with the ending balance reported on the 
annual form; or, less than a 10% difference if less than $5,000. The agency’s Annual Report must also 
substantially match the amounts on the incident reports received for currency forfeited and currency deposits 
during the reporting period. 

The new reporting requirements went into effect July 1, 2019. The Annual Report contains activity within the 
forfeiture fund accounts between July 1, 2019 and December 31, 2019.   

While the KSASFA requires only that a report of non-compliant Kansas law enforcement agencies be submitted 
to the Kansas Legislature, the KBI has included additional information from the KASFR, in this report, to 
provide a more comprehensive picture of asset forfeiture actions in our state.  The following charts and graphs 
summarize that information.  

2019 Statewide Totals 

The KSASFA requires every Kansas law enforcement agency to report to the KASFR on or before February 1st 
of each year. On March 1st of each year the KBI is required to determine if each agency is in substantial 
compliance with the reporting requirements of the act. Agencies who are not compliant are notified and have 30 
days to work with the KBI to correct any reporting errors to reach compliance. If an agency fails to file the 
required reports or achieve substantial compliance, the KBI is required to formally notify the agency and the 
District Attorney of the county that the agency may not initiate state forfeiture actions until compliance is 
achieved. On April 15th of each year the KBI is required to notify the Kansas Legislature of those law 
enforcement agencies who are not compliant with the previous year reporting requirements. 

 

 

 

 

 

The value or estimated value of what is seized and what is forfeited is collected on Incident Reports 
after a final disposition of the completed forfeiture action. Since law enforcement agencies must report 
asset forfeiture data after the final disposition of the civil forfeiture action, the property may have been 

seized prior to the beginning of the reporting period, July 1, 2019. 

Seized Property 

Total Seized Currency    $2,764,919.98 
Total Seized Property       $590,064.00 
Total       $3,354,984.68 

Forfeited Property 

Total Forfeited Currency    $1,712,088.57 
Total Forfeited Property       $341,791.32 
Total       $2,053,880.59 

https://www.justice.gov/criminal-mlars/equitable-sharing-program


5 
 

 

Table 1: Property Seized and Forfeited 
The following table breaks down the amount of seized property and forfeited property each agency reported on 
Incident Reports. Please note that a law enforcement agency is required to report anything that was seized with 
the intent to forfeit. That reporting is required once a civil forfeiture is considered complete. A completed civil 
forfeiture action under the KSASFA means: 

• The civil forfeiture case was completed through the court. 
• The county or district attorney declined to file a civil forfeiture case against the seized property. 
• The property subject to the seizure was ordered to be returned to the owner by the court. 
• The seizing law enforcement agency decided to not forward the civil forfeiture case for filing and 

returned the property to the owner. 
• The property seized under state law was transferred to a federal agency for forfeiture under federal law. 

Property Seized and Forfeited Agency Totals 

  Seized  Forfeited 

Agency Name 

Seized 
Currency 

Total 

Seized 
Property 

Total 
TOTAL 
Seized 

Forfeited 
Currency 

($) 

Forfeited 
Property - 
Estimated 
Value ($) 

TOTAL 
Forfeited 

ANDERSON 
COUNTY SO $227.00 $2,500.00 $2,727.00 $227.00 $1,800.00 $2,027.00 

ARKANSAS CITY PD $0.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 
ATCHISON COUNTY 
SO $1,284.00 $3,930.00 $5,214.00 $1,284.00 $3,930.00 $5,214.00 
BARTON COUNTY 
SO $21,309.00 $5,230.00 $26,539.00 $21,309.00 $5,630.00 $26,939.00 
BONNER SPRINGS 
PD $1,045.00 $200.00 $1,245.00 $1,045.00 $200.00 $1,245.00 
BOURBON COUNTY 
SO $3,364.00 $120,787.00 $124,151.00 $6,414.00 $16,597.32 $23,011.32 

CHANUTE PD $2,687.00 $32,305.00 $34,992.00 $2,687.00 $23,437.00 $26,124.00 

CLARK COUNTY SO $100,680.00 $0.00 $100,680.00 $100,680.00 $0.00 $100,680.00 

CLOUD COUNTY SO $0.00 $12,000.00 $12,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

COLBY PD $8,300.00 $0.00 $8,300.00 $8,300.00 $0.00 $8,300.00 
DICKINSON 
COUNTY SO $44,000.00 $13,000.00 $57,000.00 $44,000.00 $13,000.00 $57,000.00 

DODGE CITY PD $0.00 $200.00 $200.00 $0.00 $200.00 $200.00 

 

Total Number of Active Law Enforcement Agencies in Kansas: 387 
 

Total Number of Compliant Agencies for 2019: 370 (95.6%) 
 

Total Number of Non-Compliant Agencies for 2019: 17 (4.4%) 
 



6 
 

Property Seized and Forfeited Agency Totals 

 Seized Forfeited 

Agency Name 

Seized 
Currency 

Total 

Seized 
Property 

Total 
TOTAL 
Seized 

Forfeited 
Currency 

($) 

Forfeited 
Property - 
Estimated 
Value ($) 

TOTAL 
Forfeited 

ELLIS COUNTY SO $9,462.00 $2,500.00 $11,962.00 $8,570.00 $2,500.00 $11,070.00 

EMPORIA PD $24,798.98 $2,605.00 $27,403.98 $20,159.73 $1,108.00 $21,267.73 

FORD COUNTY SO $4,325.77 $24,156.00 $28,481.77 $4,141.00 $24,156.00 $28,297.00 

FT SCOTT PD $3,802.00 $3,600.00 $7,402.00 $2,602.00 $4,800.00 $7,402.00 

GARDNER PD $3,344.00 $0.00 $3,344.00 $3,344.00 $0.00 $3,344.00 

GEARY COUNTY SO $132,005.00 $12,925.00 $144,930.00 $132,005.00 $12,025.00 $144,030.00 

GOVE COUNTY SO $3,100.00 $1,962.00 $5,062.00 $3,100.00 $1,962.00 $5,062.00 
GRANDVIEW PLAZA 
PD $172.00 $1,500.00 $1,672.00 $172.00 $1,500.00 $1,672.00 

GRAY COUNTY SO $40,482.00 $11,001.00 $51,483.00 $40,482.00 $11,001.00 $51,483.00 

GREENWOOD 
COUNTY SO $9,900.00 $2,500.00 $12,400.00 $9,900.00 $2,500.00 $12,400.00 
HARVEY COUNTY 
SO $2,057.00 $1,050.00 $3,107.00 $2,057.00 $1,050.00 $3,107.00 

HAYS PD $0.00 $2,200.00 $2,200.00 $0.00 $2,200.00 $2,200.00 

HESSTON PD $0.00 $19,000.00 $19,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

HOLTON PD $0.00 $1,250.00 $1,250.00 $0.00 $1,250.00 $1,250.00 

HUTCHINSON PD $302.00 $0.00 $302.00 $302.00 $0.00 $302.00 
JACKSON COUNTY 
SO $12,340.78 $51,950.00 $64,290.78 $7,163.98 $21,850.00 $29,013.98 
JOHNSON COUNTY 
SO $10,572.00 $0.00 $10,572.00 $10,572.00 $0.00 $10,572.00 

JUNCTION CITY PD $208,086.00 $37,315.00 $245,401.00 $208,086.00 $32,600.00 $240,686.00 

KANSAS BUREAU 
OF INVESTIGATION $27,141.30 $1,000.00 $28,141.30 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

KANSAS CITY PD $71,127.00 $5,100.00 $76,227.70 $71,127.00 $5,100.00 $76,227.70 

KANSAS HIGHWAY 
PATROL $1,155,753.25 $85,972.00 $1,241,725.25 $361,166.25 $79,472.00 $440,638.25 
KANSAS RACING & 
GAMING 
COMMISSION $1,626.41 $0.00 $1,626.41 $1,626.41 $0.00 $1,626.41 

KIOWA COUNTY SO $179,600.00 $0.00 $179,600.00 $179,600.00 $0.00 $179,600.00 

LANE COUNTY SO $16,000.00 $0.00 $16,000.00 $16,000.00 $0.00 $16,000.00 

LAWRENCE PD $12,000.00 $500.00 $12,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

LENEXA PD $4,737.00 $0.00 $4,737.00 $4,737.00 $0.00 $4,737.00 

LOGAN COUNTY SO $185,670.00 $2,500.00 $188,170.00 $185,670.00 $0.00 $185,670.00 



7 
 

Property Seized and Forfeited Agency Totals 

 Seized Forfeited 

Agency Name 

Seized 
Currency 

Total 

Seized 
Property 

Total 
TOTAL 
Seized 

Forfeited 
Currency 

($) 

Forfeited 
Property - 
Estimated 
Value ($) 

TOTAL 
Forfeited 

MAIZE PD $1,187.06 $0.00 $1,187.06 $1,187.06 $0.00 $1,187.06 

MCPHERSON PD $6,489.00 $24,000.00 $30,489.00 $6,489.00 $24,000.00 $30,489.00 

MERRIAM PD $5,612.00 $0.00 $5,612.00 $5,612.00 $0.00 $5,612.00 

MISSION PD $0.00 $1,634.00 $1,634.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

NEWTON P $5,298.03 $16,900.00 $22,198.03 $5,913.03 $15,400.00 $21,313.03 

NORTH NEWTON PD $0.00 $4,420.00 $4,420.00 $0.00 $4,420.00 $4,420.00 

OLATHE PD $2,319.89 $400.00 $2,719.89 $1,804.89 $400.00 $2,204.89 
OVERLAND PARK 
PD $4,348.00 $0.00 $4,348.00 $4,348.00 $0.00 $4,348.00 

PAOLA PD $0.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 
PHILLIPS COUNTY 
SO $1,133.73 $0.00 $1,133.73 $1,133.73 $0.00 $1,133.73 
POTTAWATOMIE 
CO $347.25 $0.00 $347.25 $347.25 $0.00 $347.25 

RILEY COUNTY PD $3,098.00 $0.00 $3,098.00 $3,098.00 $0.00 $3,098.00 

SALINA PD $14,180.70 $7,475.00 $21,655.70 $14,180.70 $7,475.00 $21,655.70 

SALINE COUNTY SO $6,600.00 $0.00 $6,600.00 $3,960.00 $0.00 $3,960.00 
SEDGWICK 
COUNTY SO $24,495.00 $32,850.00 $57,345.00 $16,329.00 $2,550.00 $18,879.00 

SENECA PD $1,814.43 $0.00 $1,814.43 $1,814.43 $0.00 $1,814.43 
SHAWNEE COUNTY 
SO $212,736.79 $4,474.00 $217,210.79 $125,010.00 $4,474.00 $129,484.00 

SHAWNEE PD $15,000.00 $0.00 $15,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 
SHERMAN COUNTY 
SO $0.00 $1,839.00 $1,839.00 $2,000.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 
SUMNER COUNTY 
SO $1,000.00 $2,000.00 $3,000.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 

TONGANOXIE PD $819.00 $0.00 $819.00 $819.00 $0.00 $819.00 

TOPEKA PD $15,929.00 $0.00 $15,929.00 $15,929.00 $0.00 $15,929.00 

TREGO COUNTY SO $1,300.00 $0.00 $1,300.00 $1,300.00 $0.00 $1,300.00 
WABAUNSEE 
COUNTY SO $0.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 

WICHITA PD $128,401.50 $26,834.00 $155,235.50 $30,774.00 $7,204.00 $37,978.00 
WYANDOTTE 
COUNTY SO $11,510.11 $0.00 $11,510.11 $11,510.11 $0.00 $11,510.11 

Statewide Totals - 
July 1, 2019 through 
December 31, 2019 $2,764,919.98 $590,064.00 $3,354,984.68 $1,712,088.57 $341,791.32 $2,053,880.59 



8 
 

Table 2: State Forfeiture Fund Expenditures 
K.S.A. 60-4117 defines the acceptable use of state forfeiture funds by listing approved expenditure categories.  
The table below breaks down each of those categories and the total spent by Kansas law enforcement agencies 
during the reporting period. 

State Expenditure Category Total 
Evidence purchase funds (A) $17,665.79 

Law enforcement operations (A) $450,956.21 

Overtime (A) $2,706.07 

Training expenses (B) $113,347.36 

Building & facilities (C) $307,736.94 

Law enforcement equipment (D) $716,319.22 

Vehicles (D) $434,195.22 

Administrative/multi-use equipment (E) $162,164.23 

Joint law enforcement/non-law enforcement use (E) $329,024.77 

Professional services (F) $165,095.16 

Travel expenses (G) $152,961.32 

Employee/partner/citizen recognitions (H) $21,336.80 

Prevention/awareness programs (I) $458,685.03 

Grant match (J) $175.00 

Transfers to other law enforcement agencies (K) $170,061.72 

Transfers to a state, county or local governmental agency or community non-profit 
(L) 

$0.00 

Total Expenditures State Forfeiture Fund All State Agencies $3,502,430.84 

 

 

 

http://www.kslegislature.org/li/b2019_20/statute/060_000_0000_chapter/060_041_0000_article/060_041_0017_section/060_041_0017_k/


9 
 

Table 3: Federal Forfeiture Fund Expenditures 
Law enforcement agencies have the opportunity to receive federal civil asset forfeiture proceeds through the 
Department of Justice and the Department of the Treasury Equitable Sharing Programs. These programs allow 
law enforcement agencies to transfer civil forfeiture cases to a federal agency, where the civil forfeiture case 
will be filed through the federal courts. The local agency then receives a portion of the proceeds. The Guide to 
Equitable Sharing provides information on this program, including how a law enforcement agency can spend 
federal forfeiture funds. The table below displays the statewide total for each federal expenditure category made 
by Kansas law enforcement agencies during the reporting period.  

Federal Expenditure Category 
Statewide Total for each 

Federal Expenditure 
Category 

Evidence purchase (a) $0.00 

Law enforcement operations and investigations (a) $126,218.77 

Training and education (b) $100,164.68 

Law enforcement, public safety and detention facilities (c) $191,651.97 

Law enforcement equipment (d) $1,555,295.10 

Vehicles (d) $198,030.65 

Joint law enforcement/public safety operations (e) $0.00 

Contracting for services (f) $45,188.42 

Law enforcement travel and per diem (g) $25,477.10 

Law enforcement awards and memorials (h) $0.00 

Drug, gang and other education or awareness programs (i) $0.00 

Matching grants (j) $0.00 

Support of community-based programs (k) $6,000.00 

Non-categorized expenditures/other $69,035.66 

Transfers to other participating Law Enforcement agencies (With 
appropriate Waiver) 

$218,607.52 

Salaries (Appropriate Exception Required) $15,932.80 

Overtime (Appropriate Exception Required) $101,876.58 

Total Expenditures Federal Forfeiture Fund All State Agencies $2,653,479.25 

 

 

 

 

https://www.justice.gov/criminal-afmls/file/794696/download
https://www.justice.gov/criminal-afmls/file/794696/download


10 
 

Table 4: Non-Compliant Agencies 
Listed below are the law enforcement agencies that are not in compliance with 2019 reporting requirements. 
Agencies on the list either failed to submit a required report(s) or submitted a report that was not in substantial 
compliance with the act. Each of the agencies was notified on more than one occasion by mail, email, and 
phone regarding their non-compliance status. Those agencies were given 30 days to work with the KBI to make 
any necessary corrections. If the agency did not achieve substantial compliance, letters were sent to the law 
enforcement agency and the county or district attorney to inform them that the agency could not file further 
state forfeiture actions until they were back in compliance. 

Agency Name Reason for Non-Compliant Status 

Baxter Springs PD No annual report 
Chetopa PD No annual report 
Clark CO SO Submitted Annual Report but out of substantial match 

requirements regarding reported forfeited currency on Annual 
Report and reported Forfeited currency on Incident Reports 

Conway Springs PD No annual report 
Elk County SO No annual report 
Florence PD No annual report 
Hodgeman County SO No annual report 
Hoyt PD No annual report 
Lewis PD No annual report 
Lincoln County SO No annual report 
Meriden PD No annual report 
Mount Hope PD No annual report 
Osawatomie PD No annual report 
Stafford PD No annual report 
Thomas County SO No annual report 
WaKeeney PD No annual report 
Walton PD No annual report 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



11 
 

Visual 1: Owner/Possessor Race and Ethnicity 
The following graph compares race and ethnicity among all owners or possessors reported on Incident Reports. 
The terms owner and possessor refer to the individual who was in possession of the seized property at the time 
of the incident leading to seizure. An owner or possessor may or may not claim ownership of the property and 
there may be more than one owner or possessor per Incident Report. 

 

Visual 2: Owner/Possessor Gender Total 
The following chart displays the total number of owners or possessors reported as male and female on Incident 
Reports. The terms owner and possessor refer to the individual(s) who was in possession of the seized property 
at the time of the incident leading to the seizure. There may be more than one owner or possessor per Incident 
Report. 

 



12 
 

Visual 3: Owner/Possessor Age 
The following graph compares owners or possessors on Incident Reports by age and gender. The terms owner 
and possessor refer to the individual who was in possession of the seized property at the time of the incident 
leading to the seizure.  There may be more than one owner or possessor per Incident Report. 

 

Visual 4: Owner/Possessor Arrested 
The following chart displays the total percentage of owners or possessors who were arrested or not arrested as 
reported on Incident Reports. The terms owner and possessor refer to the individual(s) who was in possession of 
the seized property at the time of the incident leading to seizure.  

 



13 
 

Visual 5: Initiating Law Enforcement Activity 
The following chart displays the total number and percentage of Incident Reports broken down by the initiating 
law enforcement activity that led to a seizure. 

 

Visual 6: Place of Seizure 
The following chart describes the total number and percentage of Incident Reports submitted by place of 
seizure. 

 



14 
 

Visual 7: Legal Authority under Which Property was Seized 
The following chart displays the total number and percentage of Incident Reports submitted, by the legal 
authority under which the property was seized. 

 

Visual 8: Agency Disposition of Seized Property 
The following bar graph displays the total number and percentage of Incident Reports submitted, by agency 
disposition of the seized property. 

 



15 
 

Visual 9: Primary Criminal Offense Related to Seizure 
The graph below displays the total number of Incident Reports submitted, by the primary criminal offense that 
led to the seizure. 

 

Visual 10: Criminal Case Disposition at Time of Forfeiture Disposition 
The graph below displays totals of each criminal case disposition for each of the owners or possessors as 
reported on Incident Reports. The terms owner and possessor refer to the individual who was in possession of 
the seized property at the time of the incident leading to seizure. There may be more than one criminal case 
disposition per Incident Report if there was more than one owner or possessor. 

 



16 
 

Visual 11: Ownership of Seized Property Claimed or Denied 
The chart below displays state forfeiture cases in regards to whether the owner or possessor claimed or denied 
ownership of the seized property. The terms owner and possessor refer to the individual(s) who was in 
possession of the seized property at the time of the incident leading to seizure. 

 

Visual 12: Seized Currency, Ownership Claimed or Denied by Possessor 
The following chart displays the total amount of seized currency in which ownership was either claimed or 
denied by the owner or possessor. The terms owner and possessor refer to the individual(s) who was in 
possession of the seized property at the time of the incident leading to seizure.  

 



17 
 

Visual 13: Forfeited Currency, Civil Forfeiture Case Disposition 
The chart below displays the amount and percent of currency that was forfeited based on the civil forfeiture case 
disposition as reported on Incident Reports. 

 

 

 



18 
 

Visual 14: Kansas Map – Number of Incidents by County 
The map below shows the total number of Incident Reports submitted for each county in Kansas.

 

 

Conclusion 

The information provided in this report is not all-inclusive of the data submitted by Kansas law enforcement 
agencies. Please refer to the KASFR website for a complete download and additional visualizations of the data. 
Any questions regarding the content of this report can be directed via email to the Kansas Bureau of 
Investigation at KASFR@kbi.ks.gov. 

Total Number of Incident Reports Submitted Statewide Between July 1, 2019 and December 31, 2019:  274 

https://kasfr.kbi.ks.gov/
mailto:KASFR@kbi.ks.gov


All Departments
DeptID  All
All Funds Beg. Balance 3,897,912        Beg. Balance 232,484            Beg. Balance 13,142              Beg. Balance 69,550             

Revenue 4,496,551        Revenue 118,931            Revenue 117,757            Revenue 1,723               
Expenses 4,492,388        Expenses 146,124            Expenses 3,849                Expenses 358                  
End Balance 3,902,076        End Balance 205,291            End Balance 127,051            End Balance 70,915             

Fund
BudgetUnit Grand Total

All Funding Sources

YTD FY2019 
ACTUALS

YTD FY2020 
ACTUALS

$    VARIANCE % VARIANCE
March FY2019 

ACTUALS
March FY2020 

ACTUALS
$    VARIANCE % VARIANCE

YTD FY2020 
BUDGET

YTD FY2020 
ACTUALS

$    VARIANCE %    VARIANCE

51000 Payroll 3,889,684 3,997,966 108,282 3% 386,117 417,192 31,075 8% 4,771,364 3,997,966 ‐773,399 ‐16%
10 Shrinkage 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0% ‐119,283 0 119,283 ‐100%
Net Salaries and Wages 3,889,684 3,997,966 108,282 3% 386,117 417,192 31,075 8% 4,652,081 3,997,966 ‐654,116 ‐14%

52000 Communication 44,883 39,451 ‐5,432 ‐12% 5,108 7,474 2,365 46% 63,900 39,451 ‐24,449 ‐38%
52100 Freight and Express 1,612 2,048 437 27% 141 89 ‐52 ‐37% 975 2,048 1,073 110%
52200 Printing and Advertising 45 840 795 1767% 0 729 729 0% 1,088 840 ‐247 ‐23%
52300 Rents 170,008 169,671 ‐337 0% 235 935 700 298% 181,613 169,671 ‐11,942 ‐7%
52400 Repair/Servicing/Mainten 18,757 3,768 ‐14,989 ‐80% 353 186 ‐168 ‐47% 41,781 3,768 ‐38,013 ‐91%
52510 InState Travel and Subsistence 38,763 43,314 4,551 12% 5,931 4,045 ‐1,886 ‐32% 69,258 43,314 ‐25,944 ‐37%
52520 Out of State Travel and Subsistence 19,327 22,944 3,617 19% 3,445 1,447 ‐1,998 ‐58% 44,468 22,944 ‐21,524 ‐48%
52530 International Travel and Subsistence 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0%
52600 Fees‐Other Services 242,669 202,982 ‐39,687 ‐16% 22,722 7,994 ‐14,728 ‐65% 234,893 202,982 ‐31,910 ‐14%
52700 Fee‐Professional Services 34,157 31,789 ‐2,368 ‐7% 45 1,804 1,759 3910% 93,038 31,789 ‐61,248 ‐66%
52900 Other Contractual Services 2,044 2,941 896 44% 99 0 ‐99 ‐100% 13,907 2,941 ‐10,966 ‐79%
Subtotal Contractual Services 572,265 519,749 ‐52,516 ‐9% 38,080 24,704 ‐13,377 ‐35% 744,919 519,749 ‐225,170 ‐30%

53200 Food for Human Consumption 32 0 ‐32 ‐100% 0 0 0 0% 75 0 ‐75 ‐100%
53400 Maint Constr Material Supply 3,148 711 ‐2,437 ‐77% 118 243 124 105% 2,550 711 ‐1,839 ‐72%
53500 Vehicle Part Supply Accessory 9,266 7,111 ‐2,155 ‐23% 1,342 713 ‐630 ‐47% 21,491 7,111 ‐14,380 ‐67%
53600 Pro Science Supply Material 521 1,544 1,023 196% 16 0 ‐16 ‐100% 21,570 1,544 ‐20,026 ‐93%
53700 Office and Data Supplies 15,788 12,587 ‐3,200 ‐20% 1,580 1,177 ‐403 ‐25% 55,916 12,587 ‐43,329 ‐77%
53900 Other Supplies and Materials 20,133 17,535 ‐2,598 ‐13% 99 430 331 334% 3,225 17,535 14,310 444%
Subtotal Commodities 48,889 39,489 ‐9,400 ‐19% 3,156 2,562 ‐593 ‐19% 104,828 39,489 ‐65,339 ‐62%

54000 TOTAL Capital Outlay 31,793 85,514 53,722 169% 933 2,405 1,472 158% 101,475 85,514 ‐15,961 ‐16%

55960 Vol Retirement Incentive 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0%
56000 Debt Service ‐ Principal 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0%
56100 Payments for Interest and Service 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0%
Subtotal VRIP and Debt Service 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0%

Grand Total 4,542,630 4,642,718 100,088 2% 428,286 446,863 18,578 4% 5,603,303 4,642,718 ‐960,585 ‐17%

Cash Fund Balances as of March 31, 2020
ELARF Backgrounds Illegal Gambling Racing

*This report has not been audited by the State of Kansas and is intended solely for the use of the Executive Director of the Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission.



All Departments
DeptID  All
All Funds Beg. Balance 3,897,912        Beg. Balance 232,484            Beg. Balance 13,142              Beg. Balance 69,550             

Revenue 4,496,517        Revenue 118,931            Revenue 117,757            Revenue 1,723               
Expenses 4,991,275        Expenses 153,803            Expenses 3,849                Expenses 580                  
End Balance 3,403,155        End Balance 197,612            End Balance 127,051            End Balance 70,693             

Fund
BudgetUnit Grand Total

All Funding Sources

YTD FY2019 
ACTUALS

YTD FY2020 
ACTUALS

$    VARIANCE % VARIANCE
April FY2019 
ACTUALS

April FY2020 
ACTUALS

$    VARIANCE % VARIANCE
YTD FY2020 
BUDGET

YTD FY2020 
ACTUALS

$    VARIANCE %    VARIANCE

51000 Payroll 4,289,028 4,424,661 135,633 3% 399,344 529,189 129,845 33% 5,301,516 4,424,661 ‐876,855 ‐17%
10 Shrinkage 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0% ‐132,537 0 132,537 ‐100%
Net Salaries and Wages 4,289,028 4,424,661 135,633 3% 399,344 529,189 129,845 33% 5,168,979 4,424,661 ‐744,318 ‐14%

52000 Communication 49,958 42,334 ‐7,624 ‐15% 5,075 4,700 ‐374 ‐7% 71,000 42,334 ‐28,666 ‐40%
52100 Freight and Express 1,747 2,101 355 20% 135 192 57 42% 1,083 2,101 1,018 94%
52200 Printing and Advertising 45 840 795 1767% 0 0 0 0% 1,208 840 ‐368 ‐30%
52300 Rents 222,823 221,703 ‐1,119 ‐1% 52,815 52,032 ‐783 ‐1% 201,792 221,703 19,912 10%
52400 Repair/Servicing/Mainten 20,007 6,151 ‐13,856 ‐69% 1,250 2,383 1,133 91% 46,423 6,151 ‐40,272 ‐87%
52510 InState Travel and Subsistence 44,383 46,228 1,845 4% 5,620 3,203 ‐2,417 ‐43% 76,953 46,228 ‐30,726 ‐40%
52520 Out of State Travel and Subsistence 20,099 22,944 2,845 14% 772 413 ‐359 ‐46% 49,408 22,944 ‐26,465 ‐54%
52530 International Travel and Subsistence 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0%
52600 Fees‐Other Services 266,832 217,612 ‐49,220 ‐18% 24,163 17,197 ‐6,966 ‐29% 260,992 217,612 ‐43,380 ‐17%
52700 Fee‐Professional Services 35,244 31,834 ‐3,410 ‐10% 1,087 45 ‐1,042 ‐96% 103,375 31,834 ‐71,541 ‐69%
52900 Other Contractual Services 2,372 2,941 568 24% 328 0 ‐328 ‐100% 15,453 2,941 ‐12,512 ‐81%
Subtotal Contractual Services 663,509 594,688 ‐68,821 ‐10% 91,245 80,165 ‐11,079 ‐12% 827,688 594,688 ‐232,999 ‐28%

53200 Food for Human Consumption 32 0 ‐32 ‐100% 0 0 0 0% 83 0 ‐83 ‐100%
53400 Maint Constr Material Supply 3,823 750 ‐3,073 ‐80% 675 51 ‐623 ‐92% 2,833 750 ‐2,083 ‐74%
53500 Vehicle Part Supply Accessory 10,182 7,882 ‐2,300 ‐23% 915 771 ‐145 ‐16% 23,879 7,882 ‐15,997 ‐67%
53600 Pro Science Supply Material 572 1,617 1,045 183% 51 73 22 43% 23,967 1,617 ‐22,349 ‐93%
53700 Office and Data Supplies 16,159 13,117 ‐3,042 ‐19% 371 530 159 43% 62,129 13,117 ‐49,012 ‐79%
53900 Other Supplies and Materials 20,804 18,804 ‐2,000 ‐10% 671 1,425 755 113% 3,583 18,804 15,220 425%
Subtotal Commodities 51,572 42,170 ‐9,401 ‐18% 2,683 2,850 167 6% 116,475 42,170 ‐74,305 ‐64%

54000 TOTAL Capital Outlay 31,852 87,987 56,135 176% 60 18,508 18,448 30855% 112,750 87,987 ‐24,763 ‐22%

55960 Vol Retirement Incentive 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0%
56000 Debt Service ‐ Principal 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0%
56100 Payments for Interest and Service 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0%
Subtotal VRIP and Debt Service 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0%

Grand Total 5,035,962 5,149,507 113,545 2% 493,332 630,713 137,381 28% 6,225,892 5,149,507 ‐1,076,385 ‐17%

Cash Fund Balances as of April 30, 2020
ELARF Backgrounds Illegal Gambling Racing

*This report has not been audited by the State of Kansas and is intended solely for the use of the Executive Director of the Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission.



All Departments
DeptID  All
All Funds Beg. Balance 3,897,912        Beg. Balance 232,484            Beg. Balance 13,142              Beg. Balance 69,550             

Revenue 4,496,517        Revenue 118,931            Revenue 117,757            Revenue 1,723               
Expenses 5,602,016        Expenses 170,743            Expenses 3,849                Expenses 1,048               
End Balance 2,792,414        End Balance 180,672            End Balance 127,051            End Balance 70,225             

Fund
BudgetUnit Grand Total

All Funding Sources

YTD FY2019 
ACTUALS

YTD FY2020 
ACTUALS

$    VARIANCE % VARIANCE
May FY2019 
ACTUALS

May FY2020 
ACTUALS

$    VARIANCE % VARIANCE
YTD FY2020 
BUDGET

YTD FY2020 
ACTUALS

$    VARIANCE %    VARIANCE

51000 Payroll 4,867,943 5,019,879 151,936 3% 578,915 595,218 16,303 3% 5,831,667 5,019,879 ‐811,788 ‐14%
10 Shrinkage 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0% ‐145,790 0 145,790 ‐100%
Net Salaries and Wages 4,867,943 5,019,879 151,936 3% 578,915 595,218 16,303 3% 5,685,877 5,019,879 ‐665,998 ‐12%

52000 Communication 54,975 48,930 ‐6,046 ‐11% 5,017 6,596 1,578 31% 78,100 48,930 ‐29,171 ‐37%
52100 Freight and Express 2,505 2,101 ‐404 ‐16% 759 0 ‐759 ‐100% 1,192 2,101 910 76%
52200 Printing and Advertising 45 840 795 1767% 0 0 0 0% 1,329 840 ‐489 ‐37%
52300 Rents 231,587 221,993 ‐9,594 ‐4% 8,764 290 ‐8,474 ‐97% 221,971 221,993 23 0%
52400 Repair/Servicing/Mainten 22,429 6,151 ‐16,278 ‐73% 2,422 0 ‐2,422 ‐100% 51,066 6,151 ‐44,915 ‐88%
52510 InState Travel and Subsistence 51,869 49,177 ‐2,692 ‐5% 7,486 2,950 ‐4,536 ‐61% 84,649 49,177 ‐35,471 ‐42%
52520 Out of State Travel and Subsistence 22,025 22,944 919 4% 1,926 0 ‐1,926 ‐100% 54,349 22,944 ‐31,406 ‐58%
52530 International Travel and Subsistence 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0%
52600 Fees‐Other Services 292,144 225,953 ‐66,190 ‐23% 25,312 8,341 ‐16,971 ‐67% 287,091 225,953 ‐61,137 ‐21%
52700 Fee‐Professional Services 41,279 44,740 3,461 8% 6,035 12,905 6,870 114% 113,713 44,740 ‐68,973 ‐61%
52900 Other Contractual Services 2,871 2,941 69 2% 499 0 ‐499 ‐100% 16,998 2,941 ‐14,057 ‐83%
Subtotal Contractual Services 721,730 625,770 ‐95,960 ‐13% 58,221 31,082 ‐27,139 ‐47% 910,456 625,770 ‐284,686 ‐31%

53200 Food for Human Consumption 32 0 ‐32 ‐100% 0 0 0 0% 92 0 ‐92 ‐100%
53400 Maint Constr Material Supply 3,855 750 ‐3,105 ‐81% 32 0 ‐32 ‐100% 3,117 750 ‐2,367 ‐76%
53500 Vehicle Part Supply Accessory 10,182 7,980 ‐2,201 ‐22% 0 98 98 0% 26,267 7,980 ‐18,287 ‐70%
53600 Pro Science Supply Material 759 3,164 2,406 317% 187 1,547 1,360 729% 26,363 3,164 ‐23,199 ‐88%
53700 Office and Data Supplies 17,754 13,117 ‐4,637 ‐26% 1,595 0 ‐1,595 ‐100% 68,342 13,117 ‐55,225 ‐81%
53900 Other Supplies and Materials 22,977 19,007 ‐3,970 ‐17% 2,173 203 ‐1,969 ‐91% 3,942 19,007 15,065 382%
Subtotal Commodities 55,558 44,019 ‐11,539 ‐21% 3,986 1,848 ‐2,138 ‐54% 128,123 44,019 ‐84,104 ‐66%

54000 TOTAL Capital Outlay 68,530 87,987 19,458 28% 36,677 0 ‐36,677 ‐100% 124,025 87,987 ‐36,038 ‐29%

55960 Vol Retirement Incentive 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0%
56000 Debt Service ‐ Principal 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0%
56100 Payments for Interest and Service 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0%
Subtotal VRIP and Debt Service 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0%

Grand Total 5,713,761 5,777,655 63,894 1% 677,800 628,149 ‐49,651 ‐7% 6,848,481 5,777,655 ‐1,070,826 ‐16%

Cash Fund Balances as of May 31, 2020
ELARF Backgrounds Illegal Gambling Racing

*This report has not been audited by the State of Kansas and is intended solely for the use of the Executive Director of the Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission.




	D.1.a. GLI - Recommended for Approval - June 12, 2020
	D.1.b. GLI - Recommended for Revocation - June 12, 2020
	D.1.c. BMM - Recommended for Approval - June 12, 2020
	D.2.a. Agenda item Commission meeting IC 06_12_2020 Boot Hill
	D.2.b. Agenda item Commission meeting IC 06_12_2020  Kansas Star
	D.2.c. Agenda item Commission meeting IC 06_12_2020 Hollywood
	D.2.d. Agenda item Commission meeting IC 06_12_2020  Kansas Crossing
	D.3.a. SAM Disciplinary Review Board 2020-06-12
	E.1.a. BH KRGC REPORT May 2020
	E.1.b. BH - March 2020 Revenue Report - Blue
	E.1.c. BH - April 2020 Revenue Report - Blue
	E.1.d. BH - May 2020 Revenue Report - Blue
	E.2.a. KS KRGC Monthly Meeting 6 - 2020
	E.2.b. KS - March 2020 Revenue Report - Blue
	E.2.c. KS - April 2020 Revenue Report - Blue
	E.2.d. KS - May 2020 Revenue Report - Blue
	E.3.b. HW - March 2020 Revenue Report - Blue
	E.3.c. HW - April 2020 Revenue Report - Blue
	E.3.d. HW - May 2020 Revenue Report - Blue
	E.4.a. KANSAS CROSSING CASINO June KRGC meeting (002)
	E.4.b. KC - March 2020 Revenue Report - Blue
	E.4.c. KC - April 2020 Revenue Report - Blue
	E.4.d. KC - May 2020 Revenue Report - Blue
	E.5.a. Aggregated Casino Financials - March 2020 Revenue
	E.5.b. Aggregated Casino Financials - April 2020 Revenue
	E.5.c. Aggregated Casino Financials - May 2020 Revenue
	E.7 December_2019_Revenue_Report
	E.8. January_2020_Revenue_Report
	I.1a VEP Data Chart-Ending May 2020
	I.2. VEP Data Map-May 2020
	S. 20201Q Quarterly Report V2
	Y.a. Dept by Budget Unit MarFY20
	Y.b. Dept by Budget Unit AprFY20
	Y.c. Dept by Budget Unit MayFY20
	2020-06-12 Agenda After Packet.pdf
	2019 Civil Asset Forfeiture Report.pdf
	Background
	Table 1: Property Seized and Forfeited
	Table 2: State Forfeiture Fund Expenditures
	Table 3: Federal Forfeiture Fund Expenditures
	Table 4: Non-Compliant Agencies
	Visual 1: Owner/Possessor Race and Ethnicity
	Visual 2: Owner/Possessor Gender Total
	Visual 3: Owner/Possessor Age
	Visual 4: Owner/Possessor Arrested
	Visual 5: Initiating Law Enforcement Activity
	Visual 6: Place of Seizure
	Visual 7: Legal Authority under Which Property was Seized
	Visual 8: Agency Disposition of Seized Property
	Visual 9: Primary Criminal Offense Related to Seizure
	Visual 10: Criminal Case Disposition at Time of Forfeiture Disposition
	Visual 11: Ownership of Seized Property Claimed or Denied
	Visual 12: Seized Currency, Ownership Claimed or Denied by Possessor
	Visual 13: Forfeited Currency, Civil Forfeiture Case Disposition
	Visual 14: Kansas Map – Number of Incidents by County


